AGENDA
RESILIENT SAANICH TECHNICAL COMMITTEE
March 29, 2022 at 6:30 p.m.
Resilient Saanich Via MS Teams
RiodheRCEY Council Chambers, Municipal Hall

In light of the COVID-19 pandemic and to ensure social distancing, this meeting is closed to the
public and can be viewed/heard via MS Teams. Please note that MS Teams callers are identified by

their phone number which can be viewed on screen by all attendees at the meeting.

1. Call to Order Chair, T. Stevens
2. Territorial Acknowledgement ClIr. R. Mersereau
3. Approval of Agenda Chair, T. Stevens

4.  Adoption of Minutes
e February 22, 2022 Meeting (attachment)

5. Receipt of Correspondence
e Memo from Manager of Environmental Services dated
February 10, 2022 (attachment)

6. RSTC Discussion on First Nations Presentations Chair, T. Stevens
e Follow-up to meetings with Elder Eric Pelkey and
Cultural Safety Training sessions with Roundtable
Consulting
e Next steps in First Nations work

7. Update on Contract: State of Biodiversity RFP A. Pollard
8. RSTC Discussion on Principles, Goals, and Objectives
Reports
e Stewardship Working Group C. Lowe
e Mapping Working Group B. Wilkes
e Environmental Policy Framework Working Group Chair, T. Stevens

** Next Meeting: April 26, 2022 * *

Please email Nancy.Chaggar@saanich.ca if you are not able to attend.

45 mins.

10 mins.

45 mins.



MINUTES
RESILIENT SAANICH TECHNICAL COMMITTEE
Saanich Municipal Hall, Council Chambers
Via Microsoft Teams
February 22, 2022

Present: Councillor Rebecca Mersereau (Council Liaison); Tory Stevens (Chair); Kevin Brown;

Staff:

Tim Ennis; Purnima Govindarajulu; Stewart Guy; Chris Lowe; Brian Wilkes; Bev
Windjack.

Eva Riccius, Senior Manager of Parks; Adriane Pollard, Manager of Environmental
Services; Thomas Munson, Senior Environmental Planner; Carolyn Richman,
Environmental Education Officer; and Nancy Chaggar, Senior Committee Clerk.

Guest(s): Elder Eric Pelkey.

Regrets: Jeremy Gye; Kear Porttris.

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m.

TERRITORIAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT & DIVERSITY, EQUITY AND INCLUSION
STATEMENT

Councillor Mersereau read the Territorial Acknowledgement and the Diversity, Equity and
Inclusion Statement.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOVED by B. Windjack and Seconded by C. Lowe: “That the Agenda for the
February 22, 2022 Resilient Saanich Technical Committee meeting be approved.”

CARRIED
ADOPTION OF MINUTES

MOVED by B. Windjack and Seconded by T. Ennis: “That the minutes of the January
25, 2022, Resilient Saanich Technical Committee meeting be adopted as amended.”

CARRIED

= Add the following bullet point to page 3, item 10: “The Committee was reluctant to
move forward without a written report supporting the recommendations.”

RECEIPT OF CORRESPONDENCE

MOVED by B. Wilkes and Seconded by C. Lowe: “That the correspondence be
received for information.”

CARRIED

Page 1 of 4



Resilient Saanich Technical Committee
February 22, 2022

6.

WSANEC LEADERSHIP COUNCIL PRESENTATION

Elder Eric Pelkey presented to the Committee on the history of the WSANEC people and

the following was noted:

» WSANEC had a far reaching territory prior to colonization.

= 10,000 years ago, the land flooded significantly to the point that tAU (Mount Newton)
was covered with water. The water eventually diminished and the Creator told the
people that the emerging land would be called WSANEC. This is how the Nation and
territory got their name. When the colonial settlers arrived and asked what the name
of the territory was, they were not able to pronounce WSANEC and called it “Saanich”.

= The WSANEC people are still here and continue to occupy the land.

= In 1852 the peace treaty was initiated as a result of conflict between colonial settlers
(Sir James Douglas) and the WSANEC people. The parties met atop PKOLS
mountain ready for war. A priest missionary helped to calm the conflict and there was
an understanding that there would be an agreement for peace: the village and way of
life of the WSANEC people would be honoured. However, there were
misunderstandings and the treaty was not honoured.

= This is still a matter of negotiations with the Crown.

» The District recently entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with the WSANEC
Leadership Council which outlines a number of intended future co-operations related
to environmental values.

UPDATE ON CONTRACTS: MILESTONES 2 & 3 RFQ

The Manager of Environmental Services provided an update and the following was noted:

= There was high interest in the RFQ but no bids were received.

= The plan moving forward is to approach consultants who were interested in the
contract and ask them to provide a scope of work for the first phase which is the State
of Biodiversity report.

= A second RFQ will be issued for the balance of the work which is the project
coordinator and the biodiversity conservation strategy.

= This means there will be a delay in having the project coordinator available to support
the work plan.

= Obligations have been met because the RFQ process was followed. This leaves room
for flexibility moving forward.

= The Committee should consider recommendations for alternate methodology.

= |t was determined that interested companies had capacity issues and that the project
coordinator position had too many hours.

= Breaking up the project as described may solve some of the problems.

= There should be consistency in methodologies used for the state of biodiversity and
conservation strategy.

= |tis important to remain open and see what other methodologies there might be.

= The Committee may state their preference for the conservation standard methodology
being used.

= Discussions around options for the project coordinator contract ensued.

= Skillset for project coordination is vastly different than biology skillset.

MOVED by T. Stevens and seconded by S. Guy: “That the Resilient Saanich
Technical Committee recommends that the contract be split into two: The first piece
being the state of biodiversity report with a recommendation that conservation
standard be used as the first choice (but open to other methodologies), and the
second contract, which can be led simultaneously, includes the project
coordination and development of the biodiversity conservation strategy which will
build on the state of biodiversity report and the methodology used.”

Page 2 of 4



Resilient Saanich Technical Committee
February 22, 2022

10.

11.

The Motion was then Put and CARRIED
REPORT OF STEWARDSHIP WORKING GROUP

C. Lowe provided an update and the following was noted:

= The scheduled meeting for last week did not occur.

= A meeting is tentatively scheduled for February 24 and an update will be provided at
the March 22 RSTC meeting.

REPORT OF MAPPING WORKING GROUP

B. Wilkes provided an update and the following was noted:

= The focus has been on SEI and ESA polygons including Saanich ecosystem mapping
polygons.

= The maps should reflect the areas of the most important biodiversity in Saanich.

= |t was agreed that the mapping needs to be updated to correct errors and to include
areas that are not currently mapped.

= TEM mapping would the best option for rural Saanich.

= A combination of mapping tools is needed to address the landscapes of value inside
the Urban Containment Boundary.

= The Saanich ecosystem mapping method has some definition and science problems.
The working group is still working on finding conclusions for this.

= |t was suggested that the District add a natural assets layer to capture the role of
various ecosystem types.

= The environmental services provided by healthy and intact ecosystems have
measurable financial benefits.

= The working group will prepare a report with recommendations for the Committee’s
consideration.

REPORT OF ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY FRAMEWORK WORKING GROUP

The Chair, K. Brown, and S. Guy provided an update and the following was noted:

= The goals and objectives put into the framework need to apply to the whole body of
environmental policy in Saanich. An agreement with Staff should be established.

= A draft incorporating Tim’s work as well as discussions from the working group is in
the works and will be brought to the committee when review by the working group is
complete.

= The framework should demonstrate how environment, impacts, and policy are linked
together.

ADJOURNMENT

MOVED by T. Ennis and Seconded by S. Guy: “That the meeting of the Resilient
Saanich Technical Committee be adjourned.”

CARRIED
The meeting was adjourned at 8:21 p.m.

NEXT MEETING

The next meeting is scheduled for March 22, 2022 at 6:30 p.m.

Page 3 of 4



Resilient Saanich Technical Committee
February 22, 2022

Tory Stevens, Chair

| hereby certify these Minutes are accurate.

Committee Secretary

Page 4 of 4



Séanich
-

PLANNING

Memo

To: Resilient Saanich Technical Committee

From: Adriane Pollard, Manager of Environmental Services

Date: February 10, 2022

Subject: Resilient Saanich Vision, Principles, Goals, and Objectives

Please find attached the final draft of Kim Walkers report. As a refresher, her contract was to:

e Improve clarity;

¢ Making the goals and objectives more S.M.A.R.T.;
e Make revisions based on stakeholder feedback;

¢ Communicate with staff and RSTC Chair; and

e Facilitate a workshop with the RSTC.

The contract was based upon Council’s motion to adopt the RSTC Terms of Reference which
included funds for a consultant to “finalize the project vision, principles, goals, and objectives”
(revise the draft and hold a workshop). The document itself cannot be changed (with the
exception of mutually agreeable minor changes), as it is the contract deliverable.

The committee has a number of options going forward, including:

A. Endorse the report in its entirety via a motion;

B. Endorse the report subject to recommended changes to the Principles, Goals, and
Obijectives in a motion for Council consideration. This may include a memo from the
committee;

C. Receive the report only, via a motion with a recommendation for next steps; or

D. An alternate approach/motion as determined by the committee.

In aid of upcoming discussions with the WSANEC Leadership Council (WLC), a copy of Kim
Walker’s report, along with this committee’s motion and meeting minutes (and memo if one is
written) will be forwarded to the WLC.

Per the RSTC Terms of Reference, Council will decide on the final vision, principles, goals, and
objectives. Similar to the milestone one check-in, Staff will prepare a summary report to Council
which will include; the consultant report, any material from the RSTC, and the response from the
WSANEC Leadership Council. As before, the Committee is encouraged to present their
thoughts/rational directly to Council in regard to the final vision, principles, goals, and objectives.

Attachment: 1

saanich.ca Page 1 of 1



RESILIENT SAANICH PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK REVIEW &
REVISED PRINCIPLES, GOALS & OBJECTIVES

FOR THE
ENVIRONMENTAL PoLICY FRAMEWORK

FEBRUARY 1, 2022

Prepared by:  Kim Walker Community and Environment
2522 Victor Street, Victoria BC, V8R 4C9
kim@kimwalker.ca

Prepared for:  District of Saanich, Environmental Services
770 Vernon Avenue, Victoria BC, V8X 2W7



FORWARD

At its heart, Resilient Saanich is a pragmatic response to the cumulative and inequitable
problems of environmental degradation. Complex problems require complex solutions. And
there is a myriad of issues, ideas, concerns and responsibilities to consider within the Saanich
community. All are connected in some way. All are relevant.

The District of Saanich conducted its Milestone 1 public engagement process in late
Winter/early Spring 2021 with a request for feedback on the Resilient Saanich draft vision,
principles, goals and objectives. A total of 220 pages of stakeholder submissions, committee
minutes and focus group reports were reviewed and considered.

Milestone 1 stakeholders concurred at a high-level with the Resilient Saanich Technical
Committee (RSTC) on what needs to be done to protect the environment. However, as one
RSTC member wrote, “While we are working on pieces of the EPF (vision, goals, objectives), we
have not articulated anywhere what the whole document would look like. I think we need to
come to a common understanding of this before we can make progress.”

This broader question of what the full EPF document will encompass was beyond the scope of
this review and revision exercise. However, the Technical Committee and Saanich Staff
members did have some opportunity for reflection during the last few months. At least four
distinct perspectives of the EPF document emerged from various meetings. Although each
described the EPF as an ‘overarching’ or ‘umbrella’ document, the goals and objectives would
be crafted and organized in four different ways.

Resilient Saanich is an ambitious and challenging initiative. Many thanks to the contributions
and support of all stakeholders, RSTC members and Saanich staff involved. Every conversation
brings new insights. More work is still needed; with more interaction, more clarity, and more
melding of words and visions. I am hopeful that the results of this revisions exercise has been a
constructive contribution to the ongoing development of the Resilient Saanich initiative.

Kim Walker,
Community and Environment



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 INEOAUCHON ...ttt es s b et sttt bt st s bt snsnbnes 1
2.0 Stakeholder Review and AnNalytical PrOCESS ..........c.c.ccoueeuiueurieenirinirenenerneninensesesessesessessssssssssssssses 1
2.1 Stakeholder Feedback ReVIEW.........cccuriiivriincciciniiiccttcnir e es e essse s sasseseens 1
2.2 Technical Committee Feedback on Review and ReviSions..........cccveuereerevcenesinnneeresesnnsesneens 2
2.3 NEXESEEDS ..ottt sttt s bt bbbt 3
3.0 Revised Vision, Principles, Goals and ObJEctiVes ............cccvveivnneiieininineeisersossssnsessssssesssnns 5
B0 VISION cucttt e s e e et h e e b st b 5
3.2 Guiding PrINCIPIES .......covviritiitiitttc sttt sese s bt eeseaeen 5
3.3 Goals and ODJECHVES ...ttt sttt et st s s sesas s 8
3.4 Technical Terms and CONCEPLS .........cccvuriveriierreniriinictieritce et ssere e st ssssssssessns 14
REFEIEIICES .....oocvirrtiecict e e e st et et ettt s s bt 19
Appendix A: RSTC Draft Outline for Environmental Policy Framework............cocececevnineirinnnnnn. 23
Appendix B: Review & Revisions MethodOIOgY ..........cccceiereirirceruneneinensenecenesnesessssssssssesesssnens 26
Appendix C: Summary of Stakeholder Feedback ............ccovueurineurinrurcrininrenisnesnniesienisssseesensens 32

Appendix D: Summary of Resilient Saanich Technical Committee Feedback..............cccoveueuneunenee 41



1.0 INTRODUCTION

District of Saanich is developing the Resilient Saanich Environmental Policy Framework (EPF)
with support from the Resilient Saanich Technical Committee (RSTC). In December 2020, the
Technical Committee drafted goals and objectives for the policy framework, as well as a vision,
ten guiding principles, and a preliminary list of theme-based plans (see Appendix A). The
RSTC's draft vision, principles, goals and objectives (VPGOs) were distributed to stakeholders
and the general public from late January to early April, 2021 for comments and other feedback.!

Results from the public engagement illustrated a need to improve the VPGOs for clarity and
substance. Kim Walker was contracted during the Fall, 2021 to “take the results of the
engagement process and return with a revised draft of the vision, principles, goals and
objectives for the consideration of the RSTC”.2 The scope of work and methodology is
summarized in Appendix B. This report presents the results of the stakeholder review, the
Technical Committee’s considerations and the VPGO revisions.

2.0 STAKEHOLDER REVIEW AND ANALYTICAL PROCESS

2.1 STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK REVIEW

The stakeholder feedback review included results from online and paper feedback forms, focus
group reports, Saanich committee minutes, letters and emails, and memos from Saanich
departments.? The review focussed on constructive criticisms and suggestions that would
directly contribute to the process of revising and editing the VPGOs. District of Saanich efforts
to reach out to Indigenous communities for feedback are ongoing, and are not reflected in these
revisions.

There was strong overall support among stakeholders for Resilient Saanich and the draft
VPGOs. This level of support lends credence to criticisms that were expressed, although the
quality and substance of comments was considered more relevant to this exercise than a count
of support.

1 RSTC introduced the concept of thematic plans to implement the EPF. The thematic plan model was
not distributed for public comment.

2 See RSTC meeting minutes (May 25, 2021), Milestone One/ Action 7 Public Engagement Report (July 5,
2021), p. 15, and Scope of Work in Appendix B of this report.

3 Resilient Saanich Milestone One/ Action 7 Public Engagement Report, Appendices D to J (July 5, 2021),
pp. 24-224.




Stakeholders submitted well-considered opinions and suggestions. Comments that added
depth to concepts, word changes, or specific ideas were noted. Comments that indicated
confusion or frustration with the language and tone were also noted (e.g. references to messages
perceived as vague, jargon, technical, ideological, negative, lacking detail to enable progress to
be measured).

Stakeholder feedback on the vision, principles, goals and objectives is summarized in Sections
3.1 to 3.3, respectively. Specific comments from stakeholders are summarized in Appendix C
with accompanying editorial notes.

2.2 TeCHNICAL CoMMITTEE FEEDBACK ON REVIEW AND REVISIONS

The Resilient Saanich Technical Committee received ongoing progress reports with the
stakeholder feedback, analytical material and draft revisions. Opportunities were available to
submit comments and feedback through two small group meetings; meetings with the Chair,
Council Liaison and Staff; email correspondence; monthly Committee meetings; and a two-part
RSTC December workshop session.

The workshop was held on December 11th (with an additional session on the 16th) for the
purpose of:

* Bringing the RSTC together and up to speed on the review & revisions process,
» Establishing common understanding of VPGO revisions & rationale,

» Creating an opportunity for the RSTC to discuss each revision in depth, and

* Providing feedback on the draft revisions.

Just prior to the workshop, some Committee members had expressed interest in establishing a
clear, common understanding of what the policy framework document should look like before
addressing the goals and objectives in detail. It was agreed that the highest priority would be
given to discuss the principles,* and less time would be given to address the goals and
objectives.

The RSTC's overall opinion on the revised principles, goals and objectives has been difficult to
assess. Discussions and feedback throughout the process focussed primarily on explaining, a)
the function of the EPF as an “umbrella” document, and b) the fundamental concepts within the
vision and principles. Significant concerns were expressed by some Technical Committee
members. Supportive and detailed editorial comments were also voiced. However, the
December workshop sessions provided a rare opportunity for the RSTC to revisit the EPF
subject matter in depth. In this respect, the criticisms, suggestions, discussions and reflections
has become an important part of the larger Resilient Saanich development process (see
Appendix D for a summary of RSTC feedback).

4 Two draft versions were developed for the guiding principles. Revisions ‘A’ kept each principle intact,
and Revisions ‘B’ combined some of the principles.




2.3 NEXT STEPS

The revised principles, goals and objectives presented in Section 3 in this report are based on
the feedback and data available as of December 31, 2021. However, more work is still needed
before the principles, goals and objectives are finalized.

Many stakeholders had commented on what they perceived to be three significant oversights in
the draft VPGO material released for public feedback. Stakeholders did not see an integrated
systemic approach reflected in the vision, principles, goals and objectives. They did not see the
specific issues or environmental management targets that need to be addressed. And, they did
not see the presence of Indigenous voices in the Resilient Saanich process.

INDIGENOUS REVIEW AND FEEDBACK

The immediate next step to completing the revisions involves feedback from Indigenous
community representatives. Saanich Council and Staff, Technical Committee members and
public engagement participants are unanimous in their desire for the Resilient Saanich initiative
to be inclusive.

Indigenous feedback on the draft VPGOs had not been obtained within the timeframe allocated
to complete this assignment. However, the RSTC Council Liaison and Chair had an initial
meeting with the WSANEC Council on November 30, 2021. Rather than asking for feedback on
the draft VPGOs, WSANEC Council members will be given the revised principles, goals and
objectives for their review and feedback.

SCOPE AND CONTEXT OF RESILIENT SAANICH

Stakeholders were not aware that the RSTC had begun to design an integrated thematic model®
in December 2020 to implement the Environmental Policy Framework. The Technical
Committee will take additional steps to complete the thematic plan model.

The RSTC is also interested in meeting with Saanich Staff to clarify and confirm the policy
framework’s overall scope and content. This was clearly articulated in December as an
important step to completing the goals and objectives. Clarifying the scope and content of the
EPF will also respond to stakeholders’ feedback of critical oversights.

Outlines for the policy framework and comparisons tables were drafted during the review
process, mainly to help determine the substance and organization of draft goals and objectives.
New insights were gained through these exercises, even though the sketched outlines did not
capture the RSTC's vision of the policy framework.

5 See Appendix A for the RSTC's illustration of the framework as a set of concentric circles with a VENN
diagram of intersecting circles representing thematic plans. Examples include: climate action,
biodiversity, urban forestry, stewardship and other environmental management topics.




As the Environmental Policy Framework is developed and refined, further steps are suggested
to visually encapsulate the whole systems approach and relevance of Resilient Saanich across
municipal operations and the broader community. Figure 1 offers a starting point for future
discussions.

Figure 1: Elements of Resilient Saanich

Resilient Saanich is at the nexus of biophysical and built environments, local
governments, a diverse population, and the rich local Indigenous knowledge. Three key
EPF features will direct environmental management, with evaluations and iterative
learning processes to inform policy and implementation.

People

(-)
@6? uti 4 i %
K2 = EPF Guiding — %
\@ ,/ 'f-k Principles \\ oéy
S An 2

Environmental
Policy Framework

_ for Resilient
EPF Thematic Saanich EPF Goals &

Model . Objectives

-

Implementation
& Evaluation




3.0 REVISED VISION, PRINCIPLES, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

3.1 VisioN

The Resilient Saanich Technical Committee’s draft vision included three distinct concepts: 1)
the notion of coordinated efforts, 2) the inclusion of Indigenous communities, and 3) the
inclusion of both human and non-human inhabitants as beneficiaries. These concepts were also
reflected in the guiding principles.

In general, stakeholders felt the draft vision was not strong or direct enough. Words were cited
as vague or confusing, and the intended audience for the vision was not clear. Also in relation
to the draft vision statement, there was some confusion around how the Resilient Saanich
initiative relates to the Official Community Plan.

The draft vision for Resilient Saanich has been removed with agreement from the RSTC. Given
the existence of several visions in related plansé as well as stakeholders’ comments, the
Technical Committee concluded that a clear purpose statement for the EPF would be more
useful. A purpose statement is currently being written by the RSTC in lieu of the vision
statement.

3.2 GUIDING PRINCIPLES

The Resilient Saanich Technical Committee developed guiding principles to serve as a lens, or
filter that would support the development of environmental policies and other related
municipal tools.” Suggestions for new principles came from stakeholders as well as from
Committee members. Draft revisions and additions were discussed at length with the RSTC.
Ten of the Committee’s original draft principles were reorganized into seven principles and
three new principles were added.

Stakeholders were more concerned with comprehension and message tone, rather than content.
As a result, the draft principles were revised with simpler and more direct language (see Table
1). Section 3.4 supplements the revised principles with descriptions of specialized concepts and
technical terms.

6 The draft vision was compared with one vision in the Regional Growth Strategy (2018), four in the
Saanich’s Official Community Plan (2008), and seven in the Saanich Climate Plan (2020), and others.

7 The phrase “municipal tools” refers to the various ways in which local government carries out its
authority, including policy procedures, strategies and plans, bylaws, programs and partnerships.




Table 1: Revised Guiding Principles

Value the Basics Account for the many values of nature as essential to life and well-being.

Our natural environment is invaluable. Healthy ecosystems are essential to the basic survival of all forms of life, as well as to social and
economic vitality within our communities.

Appreciate Indigenous

Listen and learn many ways to know the lands and waters in Saanich.
Knowledge

Indigenous knowledge offers deep understanding of the lands, waters, plants and animals. Indigenous knowledge, cultures and
traditional practices are recognized worldwide by the United Nations for their contribution to environmental and social sustainability.

Safeguard Diversity, Create safe and welcoming public services and spaces for everyone.
Equity & Inclusivity

A healthy environment is recognized around the world as a basic human right. Access to nature and equitable distribution of benefits
and costs are priorities. From policy development to public works, the District of Saanich is committed being a safe, equitable, inclusive
and welcoming place for people of all identities and abilities.

Manage for Complexity  Adopt a whole systems approach to the mutual benefit of all.

Complexity is largely characterized by the presence of dynamic and multiple inter-relationships, non-linear cause and effect patterns,
and uncertainties. Ecological and socio-economic systems are examples of complex systems. These and other systems are intimately
connected at the community level, with local government at the hub.

Learn from the Past,

Learn from shared successes and failures to make better choices for generations to come.
Plan for the Future

Knowledge of our natural history is central to local environmental and land-use management practices. Actions that were made by
generations that came before us have had both positive and negative effects on how we live today. To the extent of what we know and
what can be known, we are responsible for how our actions and decisions will contribute to the well-being of future generations.




Make Accountable & Inform decisions with sound evidence; act with care; and adjust actions with new knowledge to make
Cautious Decisions better choices and avoid major damage.

It's important that decisions in the public interest are based on reliable and defensible evidence when risks of damage are widespread
orirreversible. Research data, local and Indigenous knowledge, best practices and evaluation results are examples of defensible
evidence. Doing nothing in the absence of evidence is not defensible. Saanich will use the best knowledge available and strive toward
continuous learning and improvements.

Work with Bioregional

Partners Work with governments beyond Saanich borders to match efforts with large scale issues.

Wildlife, flowing water, large wetland areas, and the air around us all move across political boundaries. Managing our environment
means working with other jurisdictions at whatever scale is needed to protect, manage and restore the ecological structures, functions,
and compositions in Saanich.

Lead & Collaborate Lead, innovate and work with others to achieve common goals.

Resilient communities are able to face challenges, be creative, take responsibility, change and adapt. Strong leadership is an essential
ingredient for community resilience. Leadership is the courage and commitment to act - as well as the willingness to be part of a
talented network of residents, businesses, organizations, First Nations and other governments.

Galvanize Climate

Actions Act now to help Saanich adapt to and reduce the harmful effects of global climate change.

We live in the midst of many global crises but climate change is unprecedented in terms of its far reaching effects. Everyone is
responsible. Everyone has a role in reducing the local and global effects of climate change through adaptive and mitigative actions.

Build Community

Capacity Invest in an informed and skilled community that can help to create a more resilient Saanich.

Resilience goes hand in hand with capacity, sense of belonging and community commitment. Engaging the Saanich community
through active leamning, citizen science programs and other volunteer stewardship opportunities is a worthwhile long term investment
toward building resilience.




3.3 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Two goals and four objectives were distributed as RSTC drafts for feedback through the public
engagement process. Stakeholders were generally supportive, although the goals and
objectives were criticized as vague and confusing. Objectives read more like goals and lacked
the desired level of detail to establish clear directions. Stakeholders felt that these shortcomings
would leave the goals and objectives open to misunderstandings and misinterpretations. Some
suggested transforming the objectives into goals. Others called for identification of specific
strategies and actions within the goals and objectives.

Stakeholders were looking to the Resilient Saanich initiative as both visionary and tangible.
They emphasized the importance of communicating the value of Resilient Saanich to all
stakeholders and interests; to inspire and to get people excited. Some notable distinctions were
made between rural and urban needs, new and existing land use developments, indigenous and
introduced species. However, stakeholders strongly expressed the need to be explicit in how
private and public lands would be addressed.

The draft goals and objectives have been rewritten, expanded and re-organized into ten goals
and twenty-two objectives nested within the goals (see Table 2). New material was drawn from
the revised RSTC Terms of Reference (October 25, 2021) to add more substance. Material was
also drawn from the Climate Action Plan (2020). Once the revision process was completed,
District Staff assisted in making them more specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-
bound (SMART), based on current evidence.

The revised goals and objectives look and feel significantly different from the original drafts
that were presented to the public in 2021. The original draft goals and objectives were
organized with the intent of making all four objectives applicable to two goals. The revised
version integrates the three main “pillars” 8 of Resilient Saanich plus an organizational category
into the goals and objectives, in no order of priority (see Figure 2). They have not been edited
for plain language in anticipation that the goals and objectives may change, but Section 3.4
supplements the revised goals and objectives with descriptions of specialized concepts and
technical terms.

8 The three pillars are climate adaptation, biodiversity conservation and stewardship. Climate Action
includes climate adaptation and mitigation measures.




Figure 2: Revised Goals & Objectives

Blodiversity & Ecosystem Health . ClmateAction Enhanced Stewardship Coordination, Management & Administration
Objective 4-1 \ - — X
Goal4  Objectve 4-2 (Goalj7 Oviecve -1, '
Objective 1-1 ot - Objective 7-2 / . Objective 8-1
Goal 1 Qe 1 —_ O oes ﬁ _ e Bt
Goal 3 Objective 3-2 “ amom -~y |
ﬂoﬁecﬁve 33 Goal5 | Objective 5-1 ;
4 Objective 52 ;
e | - Goal§  Objective 81 ‘
Goal2 Obkecive2 Objectve 8-2 ' Goal {0 Obkecive 10-

Obiective 2-2 " h ~ Objective 10-2
y Goal 6 | Obiective 6-1 ! 3 el

| Objective 6-2




.!’m
e b0




Table 2: Revised Goals and Objectives

Goal 1

Goal 2

BIODIVERSITY & ECOSYSTEM HEALTH

Enhance biological diversity and ecosystem health throughout Saanich.

Objective 1-1 Increase the natural abilities of ecosystems to resist stress and damage from human activity.
Objective 1-2 Coordinate with municipal, regional and other governments throughout the Capita! Region on cross-
boundary features such as habitat corridors, sensitive areas, watercourses and airsheds.

Establish new tools to protect, restore and enhance the biological diversity and ecosystem health of private

lands in Saanich by 2025.°

Objective 2-1 Work with private landowners to identify incentives, information resources, and management tools to
increase landowner contributions toward Resilient Saanich.

Objective 2-2 Work with private landowners and the land development industry to identify innovative policy and
bylaw options.

Goal 3

CLIMATE ACTION

Prioritize actions that reduce local and global effects of climate change, consistent with Intergovernmental
Panel! on Climate Change (IPCC) recommendations.

Objective 3-1 Cut greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions throughout Saanich to half of 2007 levels by 2030 and to net-
zero by 2050 or sooner.

Objective 3-2 Replace all fossil fuel use with renewable energy sources by 2050 or sooner.
Objective 3-3 Help our community become resilient to climate change through infrastructure and building

upgrades, flood hazard management, emergency preparation, community self-sufficiency, and environmental
protection and enhancement.

? Privately owned lands and land developments include properties used for residential, agricultural,
commercial-industrial, and institutional purposes.




Table 2: Revised Goals and Objectives

Goal 4

Goal 5

Goal 6

ENHANCED STEWARDSHIP

Engage and support Saanich residents, businesses and landowners to be active stewards.

Objective 4-1 Expand volunteer programs for parks and public spaces by 2025, in the areas of citizen science,
ecological restoration and community education.

Objective 4-2 Develop a private land stewardship program by 2025 in collaboration with rural and urban landowners
and land developers, to contribute toward climate action and biodiversity conservation.

Objective 4-3 Identify barriers and increase opportunities for stewardship and involvement of underrepresented
communities.
Increase community understanding of policies, plans, programs, bylaws and partnerships implemented

under the Resilient Saanich Environmental Policy Framework.

Objective 5-1 Increase active learning programs on the contributions of healthy ecosystems, climate change actions
and EPF tools toward a more resilient and vibrant community.

Objective 5-2 Continue ongoing information and community outreach efforts on the Resilient Saanich initiative.

Support a broad network of partners to implement the Climate Plan and Biodiversity Conservation Strategy.

Objective 6-1 Expand partnerships with learning institutions, professional & industry associations, non-government
organizations, businesses and volunteer stewards.

Objective 6-2 Create a network of citizen scientists by 2025 to help monitor and report on Resilient Saanich
progress.




Table 2: Revised Goals and Objectives

Goal 7

Goal 8

Goal 9

Goal 10

COORDINATION, MANAGEMENT & ADMINISTRATION

Establish and update regulatory, management & administrative tools to be consistent with the
Environmental Policy Framework principles, goals and objectives.

Objective 7-1 Fill significant gaps by developing and updating tools for blasting, noxious weeds, water
conservation, impermeable paving surfaces, screening and landscaping, ecosystem and riparian area protection,
energy conservation and GHG emissions.

Objective 7-2 Improve existing tools that address pesticide use, land subdivision and development, building
construction, stormwater drainage, boulevards, parks management and control, tree protection, soil removal and

fill, waterways, streamside protection, land covenants, land use density and structure regulations, GHG reduction
targets and other air borne emissions.

Expand the role of Environmental Services Section to coordinate the implementation of Resilient Saanich
across all Saanich departments.

Objective 8-1 Enhance inter-departmental advisory services with support on how to apply the Resilient Saanich
guiding principles in decision making.

Objective 8-2 Coordinate an inter-departmental team to advance the concepts and relevance of Resilient
Saanich principles, goals and objectives.

Improve consistency and quality of environmental assessment and reporting by Qualified Professionals
and staff.

Objective 9-1 Establish standards and training opportunities for technical environmental work.

Objective 9-2 improve the quality of, and access to, environmentally significant area mapping and inventory data.

Monitor, evaluate and report progress toward environmental protection and enhancement.
Objective 10-1 Establish benchmarks, key indicators, metrics and methods to measure changes over time.

Objective 10-2 Establish and deliver an evaluation and reporting schedule that contributes to ongoing
improvements and adaptations.




3.4 TECHNICAL TERMS AND CONCEPTS

The following terms and concepts are found amongst the revised principles, goals and
objectives. They are also found in various stakeholder comments, in Appendix C.

Adaptive
Management

Airshed

Benchmark

Biodiversity

Bioregion

Adaptation

Citizen Science

Climate Change

Climate Action

Collaborate

Community Capacity
Building

The incorporation of deliberate learning into professional practice to reduce

uncertainty in decision making. Specifically, it is the integration of design, management,
and monitoring to enable practitioners to systematically and efficiently test key
assumptions, evaluate the results, adjust management decisions, and generate leamning.
(Conservation Measures Partnership, 2020)

An airshed is an area where the movement of air (and related pollutants) tends to be
limited by topography or meteorology. An example is a valley where surrounding
mountains trap air pollution. Saanich lies within the Georgia Basin-Puget Sound Airshed.
(Government of British Columbia, n.d.)

Benchmark means to measure performance against a standard of quality (i.e. industry
sector or technical standard). (Federation of Canadian Municipalities)

Ali varieties of life and their processes, encompassing the full range of natural variability,
including genetic diversity, species diversity, and ecosystem diversity. (Saanich Official
Community Plan, 2008)

A bioregion is a concept that identifies geographic units of similar socio-economic, abiotic
and biotic features. Bioregions transcend political boundaries and can be useful in
focussing on the need to collaborate across jurisdictions to resolve transboundary
concemns such as climate change, contiguous wildlife corridors, habitat fragmentation,
ecologically significant areas, and watersheds. Saanich is located within the Cascadia
bioregion.

Actions taken to help our community cope with or adjust to a changing climate.
Contrasted with mitigation. (Saanich Climate Plan, 2020)

Citizen science means the involvement of the public in scientific research — whether
community-driven research or global investigations. (Citizen Science Association)

Climate change refers to the effects of burning fossil fuels and emitting other greenhouse
gasses (including methane and refrigerants), which trap increasing amounts of the sun's
energy in our atmosphere, causing potentially serious and rapid changes in the earth's
climate. (Saanich Climate Plan, 2020)

See Adaptation and Mitigation.

in the context of public participation approaches, the concept of collaborating is “to partner
with the public in each aspect of the decision including the development of alternatives
and the identification of the preferred solution”. Collaborating involves seeking and
incorporating advice and recommendations into decisions as much as possible”.
(International Association for Public Participation)

Capacity-building is defined as the process of developing and strengthening the skills,
instincts, abilities, processes and resources that organizations and communities need to
survive, adapt, and thrive in a fast-changing world. (United Nations, October 22, 2020)




Conservation

Covenant

Ecosystem

Ecosystem Services

Environmental
Assessment

Environmentally
Sensitive Area (ESA)

also known as
Environmentally
Significant Area

ESA Atlas

Equity

Conservation means protecting the environment through the responsible use of natural
resources. Conserved areas are lands and waters where use is limited. In some cases,
certain commercial activities and harvesting of biological resources may be allowed so
long as biodiversity is conserved. (Government of Canada)

Covenant means a voluntary agreement between the landowner and a covenant holder (a
municipality, regional district, or an approved non-governmental organization under
section 219 of the Land Title Acf) to protect the land according to the wording of the
covenant. Covenants apply to whoever owns the land, thus ensuring that the agreed
protection endures over the long term. (Green Bylaws Toolkit, 2007)

A complete system of living organisms interacting with the soil, land, water, and nutrients
that make up their environment. An ecosystem is the home of living things, including
humans. It can be any size, but it always functions as a whole unit. Ecosystems are
commonly described according to the major type of vegetation, for example, an old-
growth forest or a grassland ecosystem. (Saanich Official Community Plan, 2008)

Ecosystem services means a wide range of services from natural capital which make
human life possible. The most obvious ecosystem services include the food we eat, the
water we drink and the plant materials we use for fuel, building materials and medicines.
There are also many less visible ecosystem services such as the climate regulation and
natural fload defences provided by forests, the billions of tonnes of carbon stored by
peatlands, or the pollination of crops by insects. Even less visible are cultural ecosystem
services such as the inspiration we take from wildlife and the natural environment (World
Forum on Natural Capital)

A study undertaken to evaluate the impacts of a proposed development on the natural
environment, including the physical environment (e.g. soil erosion, agricultural capability,
unstable slopes, streams, flooding, ground water, air quality, noise, contamination of land
or water, storm water run-off and aesthetics) and biological resources (e.g. birds,
mammals, food chain effects, vegetation, biological diversity, loss or reduction of habitat,
rare or endangered species, and rare or representative ecosystems. (Saanich Official
Community Plan, 2008)

A term often used loosely to mean a site or area that has environmental attributes worthy
of retention or special care. ESAs are important in the management of all landscapes and
their functioning condition. ESAs range in size from small patches to extensive landscape
features. They can include rare or common habitats, plants, and animals. ESAs require
special management attention to protect fish and wildlife resources and other implicit
natural systems or processes. They have also been broadly defined to include other
scenic, historic, or cultural values, and may also include hazard lands. (Saanich Official
Community Plan, 2008)

A series of maps published by the District of Saanich providing environmental information
for new or revised bylaws, and ecological data for the development of new planning
strategies. (Saanich Official Community Plan, 2008)

Equity emphasizes the importance of: a) being sensitive to people of all identities, abilities
and socio-economic experiences, particularly those who are under-represented and
marginalized, and b) working to eliminate systemic discrimination of all forms.




Evidence-Based
Decision Making
(EBDM)

Flood Hazard
Management

Greenhouse Gas
(GHG)

Habitat Corridor

Healthy Ecosystem

Indicator

Indigenous
Knowledge

Landscaping

A management and decision making model based on deliberative and judicious use of the
best available, relevant and valid information from multiple sources. Evidence is used to
inform decisions rather than to defend preconceived positions. Evidence can come from
qualitative and quantitative research, professional/academic expertise, practice, local and
Indigenous knowledge and many other verifiable sources. EBDM is an iterative process
that involves questioning, verifying, evaluating, applying, reporting, learning and
improving. Also called evidence-based practice.

Policies, regulations, guidelines, funding and information used to reduce and manage
risks and damage associated with floods. [deally an integrated approach that coordinates
land use planning and management; flood protection works; and emergency
preparedness, response and recovery measures.

Gases present in the atmosphere which reduce the Earth's loss of heat into space and
therefore contribute to global temperatures through the greenhouse effect. Greenhouse
gases are essential to maintaining the temperature of the Earth, however, an excess of
greenhouse gases can raise the temperature of a planet to uninhabitable levels.
Greenhouse gases include water vapour, carbon dioxide (COz), methane (CHa), nitrous
oxide (N20) and ozone. (Saanich Official Community Plan, 2008)

An area of land that connects pockets of habitats. Corridors facilitate wildlife movement
from one area to another, and reduce other adverse effects where natural habitats have
been reduced or fragmented as a result of land development, resource extraction, roads,
railways and utility corridors. Also called wildlife corridors and green corridors.

Terrestrial, riparian and shoreline areas with high ecological value that support habitat and
biodiversity; support rare, threatened or endangered plant and animal species; and
contribute to the continued functioning of natural processes such as groundwater
infiltration, water purification, air filtration, carbon sequestration and soil nutrient
management. Healthy ecosystems can be on developed, partly developed or
undeveloped public and private spaces. (CRD Regional Growth Strategy, 2018)

Indicator means data that identifies the condition or state of something being measured.
(Federation of Canadian Municipalities)

The United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples (June 2006) states
that, “Recognizing that respect for indigenous knowledge, cultures and traditional
practices contributes to sustainable and equitable development and proper management
of the environment."

Local and indigenous knowledge refers to the understandings, skills and philosophies
developed by societies with long histories of interaction with their natural surroundings.
For rural and indigenous peoples, local knowledge informs decision-making about
fundamental aspects of day-to-day life. This knowledge is integral to a cultural complex
that also encompasses language, systems of classification, resource use practices, social
interactions, ritual and spirituality. These unique ways of knowing are important facets of
the world's cultural diversity, and provide a foundation for locally-appropriate sustainable
development. (UNESCO)

Any combination of trees, bushes, shrubs, plants, flowers, lawns, bark mulch, decorative
boulders and gravel, decorative paving, planters, foundations and sculptures, decorative
fences and the like, tastefully arranged and maintained to enhance and embellish the
appearance of a property or, where necessary, to effectively screen a lot, site, or storage
yard. (Saanich Official Community Plan, 2008)




Mitigation

Natural Environment

Noxious Weeds

Precautionary
Principle

Preservation

Qualified
Professional

Renewable Energy

Resilience

Restoration

Riparian Area

Sense of Place

Actions taken to reduce climate change, primarily by reducing greenhouse gas emissions.
Contrasted with adaptation. (Saanich Climate Plan, 2020)

Natural and semi-natural areas, both land and water, that have ecological, scenic,
renewable resource, outdoor recreation, and/or greenway value. The ‘natural
environment’ may be within developed or undeveloped areas, whether publicly or privately
owned, and not necessarily an undisturbed area. (Saanich Official Community Plan,
2008)

Plants that spread and cause a nuisance, pose risks to human and animal health, and
threaten to invade native habitats. (District of Saanich Noxious Weed Bylaw and
webpage, 2000).

Resolutions adapted by the 1992 Rio Conference, states that, “In order to protect the
environment, the precautionary approach shall be widely applied by States according to
their capabilities. Where there are threats of serious or irreversible damage, lack of full
scientific certainty shall not be used as a reason for postponing cost-effective measures to
prevent environmental degradation”. (United Nations, 1993)

Preservation means protecting the environment from harmful human activities. (National
Geographic Society)

An applied scientist or technologist, or a team thereof, specializing in a particular applied
science or technology, including but not limited to ecology, agrology, biology, chemistry,
engineering, geology or hydro geology and, (a) who is a registered member in good
standing in BC of the appropriate professional organization, is acting under that
organization's Code of Ethics and is subject to disciplinary action by that organization, and
(b) who, through suitable education, experience, accreditation and knowledge, may be
reasonably relied on to provide advice only within his or her area of expertise, and (c) who
carries sufficient Professional Liability Insurance and General Liability Insurance to defend
any recommendations made to the Municipality in court and pay the fine if convicted, and
(d) whose area of expertise is recognized in the assessment methods as one that is
acceptable for the purpose of providing all or part of an assessment report in respect of
that development proposal, and is acting within that particular area of expertise. (Saanich
Officiai Community Plan, 2008)

Renewable energy is energy derived from natural processes (e.g., sunlight and wind) that
are replenished at a faster rate than they are consumed. (Saanich Climate Plan, 2020)

Resilience is the ability of a system—like a family, a country, or Earth’s biosphere—to
cope with short-term disruptions and adapt to long-term changes without losing its
essential character. (Post Carbon Institute, 2015)

Measures taken to re-establish habitat features, functions, and conditions damaged or
destroyed by human or natural activities. (Saanich Official Community Plan, 2008)

The moist nutrient rich lands adjacent to streams. Riparian areas are transitional zones
between aquatic and terrestrial (or upland) ecosystems and often exhibit vegetation
characteristics of both; they are not as dry as upland environments and not as wet as
aquatic or wetland systems. (Saanich Official Community Plan, 2008)

The essential character and spirit of an area. More specifically, characteristics which
make a place special or unique and foster a sense of authentic human attachment and
belonging. (Saanich Official Community Pian, 2008)




SMART

Stewardship

Sustainability or

Sustainable Development

Target

Watercourse

Whole Systems Approach

or

Systems-Based
Management

An acronym for “specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, time-bound”. SMART
objectives are intended to direct actions to achieve tangible goals. They also help in
determining whether the goals and objectives were/are being fulfilled.

Responsibility for the care and protection of resources so that they will be available to
future generations. (Saanich Official Community Plan, 2008)

The concept of meeting the needs of the present without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their needs. Sustainability is based on the efficient and
environmentally responsible use of natural, human, and economic resources, the creation
of efficient infrastructures, and the enhancement of residents’ quality of life. (Saanich
Official Community Plan, 2008)

A desired level of performance set for a specific situation in a plan or program. {CRD
Regional Growth Strategy, 2018)

A river, stream, creek, waterway, lagoon, lake, spring, swamp, marsh or other natural
body of fresh water, or a canal, ditch, reservoir or other man-made surface feature in
which water flows constantly, intermittently, or at any time. (Saanich Official Community
Plan, 2008)

Whole systems approach is interchangeable with systems-based management, an
approach is one that works with the intricate and complex web of interactions among all
components of our natural (biotic and abiotic) and human-centred environment.




REFERENCES

Assembly of First Nations. July 29, 2021. First Nations Climate Lens. Prepared by Patricia
Rojas. https://www.bcafn.ca/sites/default/files/docs/reports-
presentations/First%20Nations %20Climate % 20Lens.pdf

Barends, E., Denise M. Rousseau & Rob B. Briner. 2015. Evidence-Based Management. The
Basic Principles. Amsterdam. Center for Evidence-Based Management.
https:/ /cebma.org/wp-content/ uploads/Evidence-Based-Practice-The-Basic-
Principles-vs-Dec-2015.pdf

Canadian Council on Learning. 2009. The State of Aboriginal Learning in Canada: A Holistic
Approach to Measuring Success. Ottawa.
https:/ /www.afn.ca/uploads/files/education2/state_of aboriginal learning in canad

a-final report, ccl, 2009.pdf

Capital Regional District. 2020. Regional Growth Strategy Indicator Report.
https:/ /www.crd.be.ca/docs/ default-source/ crd-document-library / plans-
reports/ planning-development/indicator-reports/ regional-growth-strategy-indicator-
report-2020.pdf?sfvrsn=595edccc_4

. March 2018. Regional Growth Strategy (Schedule “A” to Bylaw No. 4017).
Prepared by Regional and Strategic Planning. https://www.crd.bc.ca/docs/default-

source/crd-document-library / bylaws/ regionalgrowthstrategy/4017--capital-regional-
district-regional-growth-strategy-bylaw-no-1-2016.pdf?sfvrsn=ecb611ca 4

City of Burnaby. November 7, 2016. A Plan for Burnaby’s Green Future. Burnaby
Environmental Sustainability Strategy. Retrieved from Burnaby ESS

Conservation Measures Partnership. 2020. Open Standards for the Practice of Conservation.
Version 4.0. https:/ /conservationstandards.org/wp-
content/uploads/sites/3/2020/10/ CMP-Open-Standards-for-the-Practice-of-
Conservation-v4.0.pdf

Cull, I, R.L.A. Hancock, S. McKeown, M. Pidgeon, & A. Vedan. 2018. “Indigenous Ways of
Knowing and Being”, Pulling Together: A Guide for Front-Line Staff, Student Services,
and Advisors. Victoria, BC: BCcampus.
https:/ /opentextbc.ca/indigenizationfrontlineworkers / chapter/indigenous-ways-of-

knowing-and-being/

Ennis, Tim. June 14, 2021. The Open Standards for the Practice of Conservation. Planning,
implementing, monitoring, and learning from projects and programs at all scales.
Prepared for the Resilient Saanich Technical Committee meeting on June 17, 2021.
https:/ /www.saanich.ca/assets/TLocal~Government/Documents/Committees~and~Bo
ards/RSTC/Agendas/RSTC%?20Conservation %20Standards.pdf




Government of British Columbia. n.d. Provincial Framework for Airshed Planning Ministry of
Environment. Victoria. BC. https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/environment/ air-
land-water/air/reports-pub/airshedplan_provframework.pdf

Government of Canada. April 14, 2021. Introduction to GBA+. Are we striving for equity or

equality?. https://women-gender-equality.canada.ca/gbaplus-course-cours-
acsplus/eng/mod02/mod02 02 _01.html

Hallsworth, Cora, Stephanie Rathwell, Ryan Mackie, Ted Sheldon, Eleri Davies and Dagmar
Timmer. May 2019. Saanich One Planet Sustainability Scan.
https:/ / www.oneplanetsaanich.org/uploads/1/1/9/3/119346756 /one_planet_saanich
sustainabilty_scan__final.pdf

Indigenous Corporate Training Inc.. April 6, 2018. “What Does Indigenous Knowledge
Mean?”. A blog article. Port Coquitlam, BC. https://www.ictinc.ca/blog/what-does-
indigenous-knowledge-mean

International Association for Public Participation Canada. n.d. Public Participation Spectrum.
https:/ /iap2canada.ca/foundations

International Institute for Sustainable Development. October 2020. “Brief #4. The
Precautionary Principle. Still Only One Earth: Lessons from 50 years of UN sustainable
development policy. Prepared by Jose Felix Pinto-Bazurco.
https:/ / www.iisd.org/articles/ precautionary-principle

Metro Vancouver. October 26, 2018. Ecological Health Framework.
http:/ / www.metrovancouver.org/services/ regional-

planning /PlanningPublications/EcologicalHealthFramework.pdf

Post Carbon Institute. 2015. Six Foundations for Building Community Resilience. Prepared by
Daniel Lerch. Santa Rosa, California. https://www.resilience.org/what-is-community-

resilience/

Resilient Saanich Technical Committee. December 31, 2020. Environmental Policy Framework,
Draft 13.

Saanich Peninsula Environmental Coalition. May 2021. A Bioregional Framework for the
Saanich Peninsula.

The City of Windsor. 2017. Windsor Environmental Master Plan.
https:/ / www.citywindsor.ca/ residents/environment/ Documents/ EMP % 20Final %20C
opy %20January %2018.pdf

The Corporation of the District of Saanich. August 9, 2021. Resilient Saanich Technical
Committee Terms of Reference. Adopted August 9, 2021 With revisions adopted
October 25, 2021.




. May 25, 2021. Minutes of the Resilient Saanich Technical Committee Meeting.
https:/ /www.saanich.ca/assets/ Local~Government/ Documents/Committees~and~Bo

ards/RSTC/Minutes/2021-05-25-rstc-minutes.pdf

. July 5, 2021. Resilient Saanich Milestone One/Action 7 Public Engagement

Report.

. December 31, 2020. 2020 Annual Report. Serving the people. Prepared by

Corporate Services Department.
htips:/ / www.saanich.ca/assets/Local~Government/Documents/Corporate~and~Ann

ual~Reports/ Annual-report-2020-final-web.pdf

. September 25, 2020. Resilient Saanich: Draft Environmental Policy
Framework Gap Analysis. Draft prepared by Environmental Services Section, Planning
Department.

. March 4, 2020. Shaping Saanich. How Plans Connect. A fact sheet prepared

by Corporate Services Department.
https: / /www.saanich.ca/assets/Local~Government/ Documents/Fact~Sheets/ SHAPI

NGSAANICH HowPlansConnectfinal.pdf

. 2020. Climate Plan: 100% Renewable & Resilient Saanich.

https:/ /www.saanich.ca/assets/ Community / Documents/Planning / sustainability / 202
0-climate-plan-web-v13.0.pdf

. November 18, 2019. Strategic Plan 2019-2023.

https:/ /www.saanich.ca/assets/ Local~Government/ Documents/Corporate~and~Ann

ual~Reports/Strategic %20Plan %202019-2023 % 20Revision %20Nov-01-2021.pdf

. April 2018. Strategic Facilities Master Plan. (version 2 03/07/19).

https:/ /www.saanich.ca/assets/Local~Government/ Documents/ Engineering / facilitie
s-master-plan.pdf

. 2011. Saanich Environmentally Significant Areas Atlas. 3rd Edition.

https:/ / www.saanich.ca/assets/ Community / Documents/ESA Atlas FINAL Oct 25
2011 small.pdf

. October 14, 2010. Urban Forest Strategy. Prepared by LEES + Associates

Landscape Architects with Dunster & Associates Environmental Consultants Ltd.
Prepared for District of Saanich Parks and Recreation Department.
https:/ /www.saanich.ca/assets/ Community / Documents/ Urban-Forest-Strategy.pdf

. July 8, 2008. Saanich Official Community Plan 2008. Appendix A to Bylaw

8940.
https:/ / www.saanich.ca/assets/ Local~Government/ Documents/Corporate~and~Ann
ual~Reports/2008%200CP.pdf




. 2000. Bylaw No. 8080 To Provide for the Removal of Noxious Weeds and
Other Vegetation from Real Property.

https:/ / www.saanich.ca/assets/ Community / Documents/ Noxious % 20Weeds % 20Byla
w_8080.pdf

. Noxious Weeds Bylaw. 2000.
https:/ / www.saanich.ca/ EN/main/community/natural-environment/invasive-
species-noxious-weeds-wildlife/ noxious-weeds-bylaw.html

Waterfront Toronto. December 10, 2020. Rolling Five-Year Strategic Plan 2021/22 - 2025/ 26.
https:/ / waterfrontoronto.ca/nbe/wem/ connect/ waterfront/43c8b245-d3cc-4b45-aac4d-

5ae(a98ab585/Rolling+Five-Year+Strategic+Plan+2021-2022+-+2025-
26+.pdf?MOD=AJPERES

. May 31, 2017. Resilience and Innovation Framework for Sustainability.
Prepared by the Canadian Urban Institute with input from Mott Macdonald.

https:/ / waterfrontoronto.ca/nbe/wcm/ connect/ waterfront/4a8f0cea-ad2c-44f6-85(8-
0024c70dada2 /WTRI-+Framework.20171013+FINAL.pdf?MOD=AJPERES

UNESCO. n.d. “What is Local and Indigenous Knowledge?”. Local and Indigenous
Knowledge Systems (LINKS) programme. http://www.unesco.org/new/en/natural-

sciences/ priority-areas/links/ related-information/ what-is-local-and-indigenous-

knowledge/

United Nations. October 22, 2020. Capacity Building. https://www.un.org/en/site-
search?query=community+capacity

. June 2006. Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples. Resolution
adopted by the General Assembly on 13 September 2007.

https:/ /www.un.org/development/desa/indigenouspeoples/wp-
content/uploads/sites/19/2018/11/UNDRIP_E web.pdf

. 1993. Report of the United Nations Conference on Environment and
Development. Rio de Janeiro, 3-14 June 1992. Volume I Resolutions Adopted by the

Conference. New York. https://undocs.org/en/A/CONF.151/26/Rev.1(vol.l)

Urban Systems. April 2014. Maple Ridge Environmental Management Strategy.

https:/ /www.mapleridge.ca/ DocumentCenter/View /2947 /Draft Env._ Mgmt Strategy
?bidId=

WSANEC Leadership Council. June 22,2021. WSANEC Territories Indigenous People’s
Forum. Event Notes. https://wsanec.com/report-on-the-w %CC % Blsanec-territories-

indigenous-peoples-forum/




APPENDIX A: RSTC DRAFT OUTLINE FOR ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY FRAMEWORK
Draft 13, December 31, 2020
Resilient Saanich Environmental Policy Framework

in November 2017, Saanich Council directed that an Environmental Policy Framework be developed to
serve as a framework for Saanich environmental policies and programs. Subsequently, a technical
committee of natural resource practitioners and specialists was selected and asked to develop goals and
objectives for the policy framework. The following is the initial result of that work. It starts with
consideration of the Vision for Saanich as provided in the Official Community Plan'®, and then specifies
the vision, guiding principles, goals and objectives of an overarching Resilient Saanich Environmental
Policy Framework. These are to be reflected in all that happens in Saanich; they are intended to
promote the level of meaningful structural change necessary for the District and the communities it
supports to become more resilient, inclusive and effective in adapting to climate change, biodiversity
loss, pandemics and other environmental challenges that might arise.

Framework Vision:

By 2030, coordinated efforts by all in Saanich/WSANEC yield measurable improvements in climate
change resilience, habitat conservation, watershed health and ecological footprint, benefiting all those
who share and inhabit our community.

Framework Guiding Principles*:

Recognize the intrinsic value of nature;
Respect Indigenous knowledge and land uses;
Consider future generations;
Ensure evidence-based!? decision making;
Adopt the precautionary principle when facing knowledge gaps;
Build upon foundational knowledge of historical land use;
Lead by example through innovation and best practices;
Look beyond our borders to achieve results at a bioregional scale;
Address climate adaptation and mitigation in all that we do;
. Work in partnership with diverse interests to achieve outcomes that realize multiple

W NUY R WNR

[y
o

values and benefits;

18 The vision from the OCP: “Saanich is a model steward working diligently to improve and balance the natural and
built environments. Saanich restores and protects air, land, and water quality, the biodiversity of existing natural
areas and eco-systems, the network of natural areas and open spaces, and urban forests.”

1 principles are defined as cross-cutting values statements that will guide behaviour and decision-making within
the Corporation of the District of Saanich including both elected officials and staff.

12 supported by as much available and appropriate scientific data, models and research, Indigenous knowledge,
historic and cultural documents.




Framework Goals3:

1. Protect, restore and enhance the ecological function and biological diversity of Saanich.

2. Develop and implement complimentary and coordinated policies, strategies,
regulations, and incentives grounded in the overarching set of guiding principles to
achieve the vision.

Framework Objectives*:

1. Fairly and effectively managels the natural and built environment to adapt to climate
change, and enhance biodiversity and other essential ecosystem services;

2. Foster resistance and regenerative capacity (i.e., resilience) in our landscapes against
escalating environmental shock and stressors;

3. Engage and support citizens in diverse approaches to active and beneficial stewardship;

4. Update bylaws and policies across all departments to be transparent and consistent with
the Environmental Policy Framework.

Thematic Plans

The implementation of Saanich’s environmental policy framework will be outlined and developed in a
series of thematic plans—one for each area of environmental focus or concern. These are nested within

GUIDING PRINCIPLES'
FRAMEWORK GOALS & OBJECTIVES

THEMATIC PLANS (Typical)

URBAN
FORESYRY

13 Goal is defined as the outcome Saanich is looking for.

14 Objectives are defined as the purpose of actions intended to attain a desired goal

15 “Manage” encompasses protection, rehabilitation, enhancement, as well as planned development and managed
use.




the overall vision, principles, goals and objectives of the policy framework as illustrated in the following
graphic.

The Venn diagram above shows the various themes intersecting with one another. This intersection is
intended to convey the way in which the different thematic areas influence and inform one another.
Conservation of tree canopy, for instance, is a policy focus not just for urban forestry, but also for
Climate Adaptation (e.g. cooling effect of shade on the urban heat island) and Biodiversity (e.g. species
diversity and habitat provision).

Several Thematic Plans already exist, such as Saanich’s plans for Climate Action, Urban Forest
Management, Active Transportation and Agriculture and Food Security); others remain to be developed.
The following is a preliminary list of thematic plans that the Committee is currently considering for the
Environmental Policy Framework:

Climate Change

Biodiversity

Urban Forestry (includes soil and green space conservation)
Stewardship

Water Management (includes storm water and watershed heaith)
Land Use Planning & Development

Marine Shoreline

Saanich's Ecological Footprint

Agriculture (includes sustainable practice & food security)

Green Economy

Transportation (environmental aspects)

Governance and Administration (of environmental policies and service areas)

As indicated in the outline below, nested within each plan are the policies and program objectives that
will make up Saanich’s response to its diverse environmental challenges and opportunities. For its
implementation, each plan also needs to set forth the strategies and tools it will adopt in pursuit of
program objectives, along with an action plan.

TYPICAL OUTLINE OF A THEMATIC PLAN
(the outline can vary depending on the thematic plan)

Relevant Landscapes and Scales

Evaluation of ecosystem health and functional condition
Desired future condition

Gap analysis and SWOT assessment

Policies and program objectives

Strategies (approaches)

Tools

Action Plan (tasks, timelines, lead department, resources)
Monitoring and Assessment

e A A R o




APPENDIX B: REVIEW & REVISIONS METHODOLOGY

Scope oF WORK

The scope of work to revise the RSTC's draft vision, principles, goals and objectives was based
on the following considerations:

The Environmental Policy Framework (EPF) will provide a coordinated and consistent
approach to environmental management in the District of Saanich through application of
a vision and set of principles, goals and objectives.

The RSTC included a preliminary list of thematic plans in its December 31 Milestone 1
document which identifies a range of environmental areas of concern that provides
contextual background for the EPF goals and objectives (e.g. Climate Plan, Biodiversity
Conservation Strategy, Urban Forestry and other topics).

Improving clarity may include a number of tasks, such as: copy editing; translating
technical or specialized terms; using plain language; explaining or defining terms (e.g.
glossary); and illustrating the progression from vision to objectives.

Improving substance will require more detailed information from District Staff based on
available data and the RSTC Terms of Reference to make the goals and objectives more
specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, time-bound (i.e. SMART).

Revisions will be based on stakeholder feedback compiled in the Milestone One/ Action 7
- Public Engagement Report (July 5,2021).

District Staff is continuing to reach out to Indigenous communities for feedback on the
draft RSTC goals and objectives this Fall. Subject to additional agreement between the
District of Saanich and Kim Walker, results from these efforts will be reviewed and
considered for the revisions.

A clear understanding of expectations from Staff and Committee early in the process will
help focus the writing/editing tasks and results.

A draft revision of the vision, principles, goals and objectives will be presented to the
RSTC for discussion and their approval.




STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK REVIEW

All public and stakeholder feedback material was reviewed for specific comments, criticisms
and suggestions regarding the draft vision, principles, goals and objectives. 16

* The review included data from 168 online and paper feedback forms, 2 focus group
reports, 8 Saanich committee minutes, 24 letters and emails to staff or Council, 1 letter
from government, 1 letter from a group of academic specialists, and 5 memos from
Saanich departments.

* There was some overlap in data results as some of the focus group participants also
completed the survey and submitted letters to expand on their comments and
suggestions.

* District of Saanich efforts to reach out to Indigenous communities for feedback are
ongoing, and are not reflected in these revisions.

The following considerations were used to guide the stakeholder feedback review:

®  General feedback on satisfaction levels toward the work was not relevant for this
exercise.

* The quality and substance of comments submitted on specific topics was considered
relevant for this exercise.

* Consideration was given to constructive criticisms and suggestions that might help
improve clarity and substance of the VPGOs (e.g. comments that added depth of
concepts, word changes, specific ideas and examples, target audiences).

* Comments that indicated confusion or frustration with the language and tone were
also considered helpful (e.g. references to messages perceived as vague, jargon,
technical, ideological, negative, lacking detail to enable progress to be measured).

16 District of Saanich (July 5, 2021, pp. 24-224)




LITERATURE SCAN

A brief scan of documents and references was conducted to help clarify the VPGO messages.
The scan delved into the meaning of the messages as well as words that the Technical
Committee used.

* The vision and principles were compared with related local documents.”

» Additional scans of other municipal environmental frameworks were also conducted
to learn how their visions and principles were written.

* Given some ambiguity around the branding of the Environmental Policy Framework
under the name “Resilient Saanich”, the draft principles were compared with
characteristics of resilience.18

s A small selection of background references were reviewed for explanations of
specialized language and concepts used.1

Some sketched outlines were created for discussion with Saanich Staff and the Resilient Saanich
Technical Committee in an effort to make sense of how the EPF fits into the municipality’s
‘toolbox’ of policies, plans and strategies. Follow-up questions and discussions included:

* How does the placement of the EPF under the OCP’s Environmental Integrity vision
affect both tangible and conceptual connections to social well-being and economic
vibrancy?

* How does the draft EPF vision fit with visions in the OCP, Regional Growth Strategy,
and Climate Plan? What does the vision contribute? Is it necessary to have a vision?
Could a purpose statement contribute more than a vision statement?

* How do the guiding principles distinguish the Environmental Policy Framework?
How to they relate to the OCP values and Climate Plan principles?

* How do the vision, principles, goals, objectives, and thematic topics fit together?

* Based on observations from stakeholders and RSTC members, is it possible to group
some of the draft principles and reduce the list without losing the original concepts?

* Isit possible to allocate objectives to specific goals (i.e. nesting)?

17 See the Regional Growth Strategy (2018), Saanich Official Plan (2008), Saanich Climate Plan (2020), the
Saanich Peninsula’s Bioregional Framework (2021) and the One Planet Saanich Sustainability Scan (2019)

18 See Post Carbon Institute (2015), for example.

19 Precautionary principle, Indigenous knowledge and evidence-based decision making, for example.




COMMITTEE AND STAFF FEEDBACK

The Technical Committee, RSTC Council Liaison and Manager of Environmental Services were
regularly consulted and updated on the review and revisions process. In addition to an initial
start-up meeting, the following exchanges occurred (see Figure 3):

= The RSTC submitted notes on their individual insights and reflections from the public
engagement results.

» Several emails, online meetings and briefings kept members of the Committee and
Staff up to date and provided opportunities to ask clarifying questions.

* Project summaries and questions for feedback were prepared for the RSTC October
and November meetings. The October summary was delivered online by the Manager
of Environmental Services and the November summary was delivered in person by
Kim Walker.

= Two online meetings were held with a small group of the RSTC.

* A 3-hour workshop was held with the RSTC, followed by a 3-hour evening meeting to
complete the Committee’s review and feedback on the revisions.

EDiTS & REVISIONS

Editing and revising the Technical Committee’s draft vision, principles, goals and objectives
was an iterative process. All of the information and material gathered from the stakeholder
feedback review, literature scan and consultations with members of the RSTC and Staff was
used throughout.

The following considerations were used to guide the edits and revisions:

* Preserve the essence of the Technical Committee’s core messages;

» Translate technical or specialized terms and provide a separate definition if
warranted;

s Edit for more specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, time-bound (SMART), where
possible; and

* Edit for plain language. Standard acceptable readability levels for the general public
are 60-70 on the Flesch Reading Ease scale and not higher than grade 8 on the Flesch-
Kincaid Grade Level scale.

The revised principles, goals and objectives were distributed to District Staff for their review at
the same time as they were distributed to the RSTC. Staff did not comment on the principles
other than asking two clarifying questions.




Staff submitted written feedback on the revised goals and objectives, with a follow-up online
meeting. The focus of Staff feedback was to help making the goals and objectives more specific,
measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-bound (SMARTer) to the extent possible based on
current available data.?

The principles were discussed at length with members of the RSTC during the small group
meetings and workshop sessions, with additional written comments. The draft principles were
tested for readability with the Microsoft Word grammar tool. The median score for the revised
principles is 67.25 on the Flesch Reading Ease scale and 6.9 on the Flesch-Kincaid Grade Level
scale.

The revised goals and objectives were distributed to the RSTC but they were not discussed due,
in part, to the limited time available to them. Also, the revised goals and objectives were not
tested for readability, in anticipation that they may be adjusted and refined by the Resilient
Saanich Technical Committee.

2 For example, climate action goals and objectives were discussed in relation to the Saanich Climate Plan
(2020).




Figure 3: Meetings and Deliverables Timeline

MEETINGS AND DELIVERABLES

12-14 02-02
RSTC Final
Workshop Report
09-15 10-29 11-23
Start-up RSTC small group RSTC
meeting meeting 1 monthly meeting :22511_(6:
Workshop
{cont.) Small
11-15 group Staff
VPGO Draft RSTC small group meeting
llustrations meeting 2 on g&o
Stakeholder 12-31
Feedback Final Draft
Summary Revisions
12.03
Draft Revisions
& workshop materials

Page 31



APPENDIX C: SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK

Appendix C contains summaries of comments and suggestions from Resilient Saanich Milestone 1 public engagement participants. They have been condensed into key messages for the vision, and each of the principles,
goals and objectives. General comments were also collected and documented.

SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK EDITORIAL NOTES
= Clearly communicate the value of Resilient Saanich to alf ;takeholders - anate_ and public inlemgk need to work together. Ensure both rural | = Overall, responses pointed out a need to more finely tune the draft, increase clarity, consider what may be missing, and simplify the writing.
and urban voices are represented; develop goals & objectives specifically for private lands & pubtic lands e Technical terminology can be translated into plain language of explained (e.g. include a glossary)
* Include and social ity effors environmental sustainabiity = The thematic plans were not included in the Milestone 1 Public Eng ials, and therefore not included in the scope of work for
= Align the wording to the defini of visions, pnnciples, goals, oby & strategies (note ~ this is a reft to the triangle il ion in this contract. However, many of these topics were talked about or referenced by several stakeholders in the form of tangible examples
the public engagement matenial} issues, opportuni st ,_“ & weal There may be some useful ideas and specific suggestions throughout the feedback mat
» Include more specific examples in the goals & objectives — e.g. Garry oak ecosystem, daylighting streams, sustainable agriculture, etc. that the Committee might wish to consider in finalizing their it of themes, and in developing specifc goals and objectives.
{more focus)

= Language is weak, indirect, constrained & defensive: make statements more positve (Le. opportunity rather than loss)




DRAFT VISioN

SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK

EDITORIAL NOTES

By 2030, coordinated efforts by all in
SaanichWSANEC yield measurable improvements
in climate change resilience, habitat conservation,
watershed health and ecological footprint, benefiting
all those who share and inhabit our community.

There were questions and some confusion in refation to the Resilient Saanich and the OCP visions - e.q. will the OCP vision change to this
one? Feedback included specific edits to the OCP wision. Arguments were made both in favour of keeping the OCP vision and in favour of a
different vision.

Who is this message for or about?

- It sounds like a technical/scientific statement aimed at thase who'll be implementing the policy (i.e. staff, workers).

- It needs lo resonate for everyone, it needs to inspire us, it needs to be a convincing rationate for action, the language {vs words) needs o
engage & be inclusive of everyone i the community.

- Reference to WSANEC - it's an incomplete list of local Indigenous groups

Purpose of the vision? - make i more ‘visionary’; long term; aspi | of what the ideal Resilient Saanich would look like

The year 2030 prompted re; interim 4 laying the urgency of issues, ambitious for a vision, the framework is not a
time limited pm;ect having to create a new EPF in 2031, need Iong-term (150 year) vision of where Saanich hopes to be with biodiversity
and cimate change resiliency & short-term vision, matching with Climate Action Plan (2050 & 2030}

The vision is missing some elements such as:

- a human focus - e.g. education, stewardship, i

- measures for accountability, mulliple values & trade-offs, private-public partnerships

- interconnectedness & ripple effects on quality of our work/ life/ play

-the meanmg of resilience ... planning for the future; in the face of change and many related challenges (e.g. fires, floods, rising sea level
- iration s, desired end-state, benefits

Luy P

The RSTC vision is not strong enough or direct enough. Several words/phrases were cited as vague, confusing or overlapping.

- Does the word “conservation” mean only intact habitats will be the focus? ~ one suggested edit was to add “restoration”. A stronger
message would use “rights” of nature or to a healthy environment.

- What does ‘measurable improvements’ mean — how do we achieve transformational change, rather than incremental change

- Scale of issue is at nationall intemational levels; what can Saanich do to scale up its efforts/impacts to mutually benefit other junsdichons

Suggested revisions:
- *By 2030, coordinated eflorts in ecological profection, restoration, and enh t by all in Saanich/ WSANEC yield measurable
improvements in ... and a sustainable built environment....

- By 2030, coordinated efforts .. . by all in Saanich/ W_SANEC yield bt in our ecological footprint, watershed health,

climate change resilience, habitat and species conservation to enable cumrent and quure generafvons to live healthily in our collective home”.

- “Saanich is a model steward working diligently to prevent and end the di caused by carbon. g practices fo the natural
environment

- *To adopt best practices that will sustain and/or improve climate change ik within the ipality of Saanich and traditional
temitory of the WSANEC people with balanced oul that are achievable and ble".

- *The Disinct of Saanich and its residents working in parinership lo enh biodiversity and ecosyst ikence on public and prvate
lands through stewardship and acfion”.

nneD:stndoISaamchandilsrestdwlswonmgm peration to enh biodiversity and ystem resilience on the natural and built
enwronmerwlhroughachons garding and iship”

Many visions already exist in refated documents: CRD Regional Growth Strategy H
(1), OCP (4), Climate Action Plan (7).
The date doesn't coincide with CRD (2038), Climate Action Plan (2050).- How

does this vision fit and add value within the localiregional context of related
environmental/ land management tools?

The unique messages in this vision statement are reflected in the draft
principles: Coordinated efforts / P10; WSANEC / P2, benefiling alf  P1 (7)

Details in the vision prompted many g / suggestions for more
detail and more comprehensive lists — to the point where the utilty of having a
vision gets lost

A vision statement is not a requirement for all policies and planning documents.
How essential is a vision for the EPF?

Opuons for consideration:

Drop the vision and transform the key messages into more goals & objectves
Create a different vision that galvanizes the concept of Resilience

Make minor edits to clanfy the existing statement

Strengthen the draft pnnciples to ensure the intent of vision is fully represented

Drop the vision and include a clear purpose statement in the EPF that
incorporates some of these key messages

Revisions:

The wision was defeted and will be replaced by the RSTC with a purpose
statement




DRAFT PRINCIPLES

P1. Recognize the intrinsic value of nature

P2. t Indig; K ledge and land
uses

P3. Consider future generations

SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK

This is an important concept because of the connection between not considering the value of nature enough to biodiversity loss

’Y

On valuing - consider monelizing the value of our natural areas and biodh fit, return on il

“Recognize” is a weak word; not active or direct enough — suggestion to replace with “preserve & conserve”
“Intrinsic value® is not well-understood or universally accepted - suggestion to drop ‘intrinsic’, values are human constructs
P1 doesn't aliow di of trade-offs b

The word "nature” is too general ~ it applies to anything living (nativefndigenous species, cultured species, invasive species). How would a
newcomer or average citzen know what has intrinsic value specifically in this biaregion?

Does this pnnciple recognize the value of natural (pk ds e.g. mature trees, bushes, fruit trees, grasses etc.

values

(T

d) assets in

In general, there is strong support for ensuring First Nations' voices are a part of Resilient Saanich over the long term. Ideas included -
partnerships, and integration of traditional knowledge/practices with Western scientific land management.

The word “Respect’ is too general, vague and open to wide interpretation — some suggestions included “respect & integrate”, “preserve and
protect”, "buikl trust and understanding of and for Indigenous peoples

The message is undear Dues this include leaming from & implementing indigenous knowledge? What are the land use
dictions?

Loose reference to UNDRIP statement *... respect for indigenous knowledge, cullures and traditional practices contributes to sustainable
and equitable development and proper management of the environment”.

Lo, it | 1o

P2 acknowledges - the resurgence of Indigenous culture & traditional | o
some caution was given to the lack or limitations of indigenous knowledge today

Ensure their voices are part of Resikent Saanich

ge & land use pnnciples. However,

Vague but not contentious - associated with benefits over long time horizons {e.g. 7 generations), leaving a legacy, making good choices,
making improvements now for future

Consider that what we do now does not hinder opportunities (social & economic) for future generations who may be faced with higher
population, higher costs, fewer resources, etc.

Future generations includes all life, not just human

Concept of time/future brought out discussions on *shifting baselines and normative change™ across generations, particularly where habitats
and landscapes change significantly over time (i.e. urbanization)

EDITORIAL NOTES

This is grounded in what matters vis a vis the importance of the environment —
highlights a need to take mto account the benefits and assets that natural
features/systerns contnbute; the need to give priority to/weigh the “value of
nature” {e.g. in land use/ conservation/ development matters)

lntnnsm value 15 1 of 5 unique value perspectivesiworld views; intrinsic value is
an tive value (i.e. mdependent of human valuing processes) — does not

guide actions or decision making in public policy forum

Concern with what constitutes “nature” in the ruralfurban landscapes, &
indigenous/cultural landscapes

Refocus on whathow to apply values toward desired outcomes (regenerative
economics, full-cost accounting?), and/or the integration of & implications of
value trade-offs

Potential link with P3 re: longevity perspectives; & P8/P9 re: bigger picture,
systemic foundations, cumulative/multiple effects

Revisions:

“Value the Basics. ..

Respect for Indigenous peoples and for their potential contribution to long term
sustainability and resilience is clearly evident.

What can this principle add to current standard acknowledgement and
engagement protocols? Does Saanich currently apply a First Natons/ndigenous
lens to their policies and operations?

Indigenous traditional !and use knowledge is recognized as potentially mportant
for future envi ices. P2 does not clarify or provide
direction on how traditional pracnces should be considered or applied in today's
landscape.

This principle should be a stand-alone pnnciple.

| alternath rtunities for local Indigenous peoples to
contnbu(e their knowledge and skllls in traditional land practices

Revisions:

“Appreciate Indigenous Knowledge...”
How can this concept guide decisions, provide direction on a practical level? -
P3 sounds similar to definition of “Sustainable Development”

Incorporating long-term considerations into management plans and assessments
may identify potential long term effects (positive & negative)

What are the opportunity costs? Lost opportunities?

Long time horizon in the context of “shifting baselines” Imks with P6 (i.e. lookmg
forward, looking back) — very different from

What exactly should we be considering?

Revisions:

P3 & P6 were combined into "Leam from the Past, Plan for the Future...”




DRAFT PRINCIPLES

PA. Ensure evidence-based®* decision making

P5. Adopt the precautionary principle when
facing knowledge gaps

P6. Build upon foundational knowledge of
historical land use

P7. Lead by example through innovation and
best practices

SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK

Want science to guide decisions but don’t want to have to watt for the science when the losses are immediate and logic can prevail. Science
is slow and doesn't always have answers

Concems - that this can be used to undermine or prevent action to protect a healthy environment; *available data® leave the possibility of
faulty decisions; data need to be ground-truthed

A tability - need feedback loops, monitoring & adaptive management

Implies need for benchmarks, data gathering, indi ing - mention the need for data, current state, reporting

Link P4 & P5 - “Ensure further | damage is p ted through the precautionary principle until evidence-based decision
making provides clear direction”.

Need to link this with filling the knowledge gaps - precautionary principle can lead to actions that are not scientifically based, vague, obstacle
to progress

Define “precautionary principle” to reduce misinterpretation & increase understanding on intent; define in a glossary

Implication for P7 - could create paralysis, negate leadership & i , excuse to not act when cont y or misleading fi
anse, vague actions
Very seldom used, though imp re: q impact - i ibikity of decisions, speed of d in relation to slower rate of

scientific knowledge
Unclear, needs more refinement - whose history? how far back? What does this mean? How much information is enough? — there are limits
to our histonical knowledge currently
Reasons confiming - to adapt, undo past mistakes; avoid memory loss,
Sense of place — understand this place; value of lessons from past — community understanding of change, causes & long term imeversible
. 3 S o o ot

'Focus should be on future to put into place things that will help us achieve an envionmentafly sustainable community, past practices need
only be supported where they meet future goals and objectives

“Historical fand use” - lots of confusion over whether this is refeming to pre or post colonial history — tied to cultural resurgence of Indigenous
peoples (positive)? Is this about ing to a natural state a some arbitrary past point in time (negative)? Does this mean if it was industnal
it should remain industrial and if it was a field it should remain a field?

Make note of where the knowledge comes from and the evidence

“Lead by example” - focus on doing something, others are already leading and we need to follow
“Innovation & best practices” contradict each other — either you want innovation or want to keep up with best practice

What's missing - working collaboratively with landowners to create and achieve common goals; adopt new ways of working with
stakeholders; what to prioritize {e.g. least degraded areas with high probabifity for success such as parks & undeveloped lands to
demonstrate success}

P7, 9, & 10 are often used to justify new carbon intensive and unnecessary building when simple renovation or enhancing would do

EDITORIAL NOTES
P4 & PS5 both address the intersection of information & dec
sides of the same coin. Possibly combine the principles.
P4 & P6 both generated discussions on data coliection & use
Destre for defensible, durable, timely decisions

Looking to continuous improvement

making; two

Revisions:

P4 & PS were combined into "Make Accountable & Cautious Decisions..."

Consequences - ieversibitity, magnitude, significance

“In order to protect the envi the p y approach shall be widely
applied by States according to their capabilities. Where there are threats of
serious or imeversible damage, lack of full scientific certamty shall not be used as
a reason for postponing cost-effective measures to prevent envionmental
degradation.” (Principle 15, Rio Conference, 1992)

Revisions:

P4 & PS5 were combined into "Make Accountable & Cautious Decisions...."

P& has conceptual links to P2, P3 & P4

Viewing information & knowledge with a long time honzon - looking back &
looking forward

How did we get here? — lots of interest in baselines, cause & consequence
Natural history?
Traditional Ind

uses & 1o sense of place

Revisions:

P3 & P6 were combined into "Leam from the Past, Plan for the Future..*

Linkages between P7, P8, P10 in relation to human factor - leadership,
collaboration, parinerships

Opportunity-onented

Revisions:

P7 & P10 were combined into “Lead & Collaborate...”




DRAFT PRINCIPLES

P8. Look beyond our borders to achieve
results at a bioregional scale

P9. Address climate adaptation and
mitigation in all that we do

P10. Work in partnership with diverse
interests to achieve outcomes that realize
multiple values and benefits

SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK

Vague — unclear what this means

Too passive in the wording - need to be more proactive in building upon & connecting with other municipalities; leading the way where there
1s inaction at the regional level (i.e. be an influencer)

Work across jurisdictional boundaries, regional planning - wildlife corridors, protected areas, watersheds, airsheds
Still doesn't acknowledge the glabal scale of the problem

“All that we do” - Too broad, over reaching; Not everything we do can support climate adaptation; there will always be cost/benefits to each
decisk vague, need specifi

Meaning? - “How do you plan to adapt the climate?”
Word edits: replace “address” with *Consider’; "Continue to address...”,

“Mitigation” ~ it's uninspiring/ bureaucratic/ ambiguous - this means make less worse or siow the impacts, We should be stabilizing,
reducing...

Vague wording, open to interpretation - “diverse”, “working in partnership”, “interests”, *achieve outcomes”, needs to recognize values of
partners too

Missing - the need to scale up our collaborations beyond Saanich boundaries

Re “Outcomes” - this is a recipe for inaction, keep it simple; Often prevents hard decisions from being made — might box you in; this might
create compromises for the environment

Suggested edits - “realize environmental values and benefits™, “all interests” instead of diverse interests; “work collaboratively” instead of
work in partnership

Does this inchide built & natural environment? Needs to be clearer, we need regenerative development
Suggestions: - regenerative development, achieve a common vision; continuous community engagement

EDITORIAL NOTES

= Linkages with P1 re maintaining ecosystem/bioregional values & benefits
= New ways of working with stakeholders & other local govemments?

= Ecological functions & systems don't potitical boundari
= Human dimension or spatial dimension?
Revisions:

e "Work with Bioregional Partners...”

= Subject-specific nature of P9 looks unique in list of panciples
= Specific reference to Climate Action Plan

Revisions:
= “Galvanize Climate Actions...”

= Solutions-oriented or interest-based approaches
= Partnerships as avenue for continuous of ongoing engagement, working together

= ‘Diverse” - many, different, divergent, opposing - Multiple ?
®  People-focussed
Revisions:

= P7 & P10 were combined into *Lead & Collaborate..




General

DRAFT PRINCIPLES

SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK

= Principles don't cover everything they need to,

= No priority on how principles should guide conflicting interests

= Might not be fully understood or embraced, full of jargon, sound like ideologies rather than pragmatic or scientific
New principles suggested by stakeholders:

= Preservation of natural habitats on private and public land (scope)
= (Create clear mechanisms for community oversight/involvement
s “Worktoi the built envi into by ensuring designs mimic ecological functions within the landscape”

g Y

s Add education/engagement principle (the human dimension) — take active part in community engagement and education to increase
understanding, support, buy-in and active participation.

h

= “Recognize that piecemeal app aren't effective. A sy approach ~ consider the whole system *, integration of sustainability

(soc, econ, env)

s “choose the path of humility rather than hubris in our decision making, and being cautious when it comes to engineenng our way out of
environmental problems” - precaution

= “Recognize that the health of the natural environment and human health and well-being are inextricably linked”

= “Decisions are made under a robust d tic fi k with full p y. There shoukd be some kind of mechanism to ensure that
we get transparency”.

= Make decisions in a timely fashion

s Respect private property rights - ize rights & expectations of landk need to be p

e Track progress/measure success

. Redl'n:e all d costs and exp - use vol lcus)e gulatory onfy when needed — use full range of tools (education,

gulation, p hip ship, r h, elc.
«  Empowerment — Saanich residents are dto ibute and participate in biodiversity in real and ful ways.
= One Planet Saanich principles — zero waste, appropn i logical reg: farming efc.

= Equity - locally, access to nature, global perspective, intergenerational; "ensure equitable distribution of environmental benefits & burdens
{Jan 26, 2015 Right to a Healthy Environment)

s Resilient to what the future holds e.g. natural disasters; “be more resikient in the face of change” — adaptive management
= Regenerative economics

EDITORIAL NOTES

10 is a lot of principles.
How do they fit with the OCP values, Climate Plan principles etc.?

What's the difference between EPF principles and evaluation matnx performative
criteria? In terms of function?

The RSTC Notes reflected on {among other things);
- usefulness of pnciples as policy fiters

- how many pnnciples to include (10 is a lot)

- possible additions (stewardship, equity)

Options for consideration:

Consider deleting P9 (climate) - different than the other principles (ie thematic)

Consider how to incorporate stakehalder suggestions in panciples, or
altematively as goals/objectives

Reduce the number of principles by grouping theme but 9 key

RSTC indicated interest in new principles or P g principles for
stewardship & equity

Page 37



DRAFT GOALS

G1 Protect, restore and enhance the ecologlcal

ion and biolog| ity of S

G2. Develop and implement complimentary and
regulations, and

ded in the hi
guiding princlples to achieve the vision

General

g set of

SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK
This goal is not achievable for private lands within the Urban Containment Boundary & it's not clear if it is attainable in Saanich Parks due to
the extent of degradation from invasive species.

Need targels (many e.g. #ha to pmtect specific areas) to ensure economic d p
on whether goal is being ach Include g, reporting, revising as needed

Restoration has 3 benefits: 1) reverse biodiversity loss, 2) recover ecosystem services, 3) reconnect people with nature. It requires habitat
connectivity across a wide range of land uses including private lands, education, incentives & other tools

Landk will not see th Ives in this goal unless it's clarified; need their cooperation & acceptance — G1 prone to different
mterpretatmns sounds ideological; need clear development directions

Py jon & enh
*Restore” - not sure what this means; restore to what point in time? to what degree? to what end? prioritized how?
“Ecological function” - to what ends or for what purpose? e.g. safe harvestfiood security

don't

de goal; to be able to agree

are distinct. All are important - consider individual goals for each;

The list could also include p hips, ad! Y icipal operati ducation prog: ...but need specific ones & a timeline by which
this will be achieved

These tools {policies, strategies etc) are used to achieve a goal and objective — shouldn't be in a goal

How will the Envi tal Poticy Fi k be coordinated with economic and social sustainability policies and tools — e.g. how will other

priorities be addressed (e.g. housing affordability}

“Regulations” - given past practices, this word scares people. Should regulations be a goal or an
The need for regulations needs to be explained & better understood in the EPF

“Complimentary” — should be "complementary”
The principles need to be very clear & strong to achieve G2
What guarantee is there that policies will be impk d or enf

(or means to g a goal).

d? - need incentives for good beh

Get landowners excited about positive actions on their properties rather than being forced; encourage people to want to contribute to
biodiversity / climate resili on their properties (e.g. enh birds, grow species at risk, Fire Smart their properties}

Goals need more work - sustainability concept is missing (social, econ), too vague {look at Burnaby, Windsor), public lands only? Priarities
such as first effort on parks/public lands?

How will the multi-jurisdictional context be considered? How do these connect with OCP, local area plans, Climate plan?

Suggestions for new goals:

Capture the breadth of actions & strategies (e.g. climate, biodiversity, stewardship etc.); make them broad enough to apply across all
departments, identify outcomes

Specifically address natural & managed areas, urban & rural areas, private & public lands, etc.

Include goals for: C tivity, Monitonng & R {e.g. from Climate Plan), | ing public of the imp of this policy
and why, Partnenng reglonaly In climate & btodlversxty actions, leading by example *To work in cooperation/ in partnership with prvate
landowners to enhance their properties for biodiversity values and resilience on the properties”

“To develop an effective, measurable, prvate land stewardship program working encouragingly with landowners, both in built areas and
within the rural areas”

EDITORIAL NOTES

= Explicit goals and objectives for public & private lands could help alieviate
tensions and contribute greater clarity for suitable strategies and approaches.
- Related objectives could highlight different approaches for various rural / urban
land uses, regional collaboration, future / existing developments, parks / other
municipal lands

= Whatis the desired outcome?

= Stakeholders pointed to equity related existing land &
new developments. There are strong interests in finding more innovative &
creative ways to support and partner with private landowners & prvate sector and
get them excited to contribute to shared goals & objectives vs just having
simplistic rules they need to follow which don't fit every situation or solve the
bigger biodiversity problems.

Revisions:
= RSTC Draft Goal 1 was separated and revised into Goals 1 & 2

»  The essence of this message seems to be for Saanich to have a complement of
tools and to coordinate these across the municipafity.

= The last clause (grounded in ...) is redundant.

= The list of tools is incomplete, which is a problem in a goal. If something is not on
the list (e.g. programs, communications, operations etc.) it won't be considered.

Revisions:
s Rewsed Goal 7 and Objectives 7-1, 7-2 were developed from RSTC Draft Goal
2, the Revised RSTC Tenms of Reference, p.3 buflet 1, & Gap Analysis

= The goals were criticized as either too broad or not broad enough.
Alternative approaches might be:
a) Have more g&o to address the range of strategies & actions that people want to

see addressed — i.e. a goal for each of the “strategic pillars”. Pull the list from the draft
vision and other RSTC mandated tasks.

b) Develop a clear Iogx: flowAhought process from implementing goals & objectives to
reahzmg the vision — i.e. 1. Scope (e.g. ruraliurban, private/public, range of toots,

|, regional collaboration 2.Data collection, 3. Coordi across
departments 4, Community outreach (stewardship, educahon etc), 5. Specific loolsl
initiatives/ themes to fill gaps, 6. Adaptive 7. Moni & reporting




DRAFT OBJECTIVES

01. Fairly and effectively manage?? the natural and
built environment to adapt to climate changc, and

biodi y and other y
services
02. Foster and reg t pacity
{i.e., resilience) in our land: against lati

environmental shock and stressors

03. Engage and support citizens in diverse

Fini hi

SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK

Reads like a goal

Wonrds “fairly” and “effectively” are loaded, vague, difficult to determine &

the general intent. Raised

questions of who decides what's fair and effective, fair to whom or to what (vis a vis envmnment)‘l - define or remove “fairy”

*manage” - does this include all lands in Saamch and not just municipal lands?
“built envi " — cultural or de?

“enhance biodiversity” ~ needs to be specifically directed towards native species & their habitats
environment to adapt to climate change™ & "enhance biodiversity” should be two different objectives

‘manage ...

Reads like a goal

“Resilience is more than reg:
like

capacity -

“Foster resilience (.i.e. regenerative capacity) in our landscapes to adapt to environmental st

storms, heat waves)”.
“In" our landscapes? “of” our landscapes? — does this include air & water toa?
Unclear — generality of statement could limit its usefuiness or be so unbound & excessive

Suggestions: “Foster and reg, tr
environmental shock and stressors;

Clarify what's needed — e.g. improve communication with and environmental understanding among landowners, voluntary private land

approaches to active and b | p

04, Update bylaws and policies across all
departments to be transparent and conslmnt with
the Envi | Policy Fi k

hip, community education & shared learning, homeowners need guidance and support (there's a lot of confusing & conflicting out

there}

Include the word *collaborative” — points to the idea of strengthening partnerships & engaging different stakeholders

“cilizens” — change to landowners to include owners that are not citizens; are businesses considered citizens? Commercial property owners?
A stewardship program will require purposeful and deliberate outreach by the District of Saanich. Use variety of incentives; motivate.

People and stakeholder groups can contribute in many different ways with different levels of abikty, knowledge, resources. Need some

flexibility to allow for creatwvity & innovation; Foster sense of pride; Show appreciation.

Sounds like Saanich is not transparent — “more transparent™?

Lots of concem for current bylaws that don't work very well - depends on enforcement, they are rules-based rather than objectives-based,

can restrict or hinder innovations

Which bylaws and policies are most problematic or potentially most valuable to achieve EPF goals {e.g. zoning); what about new policies?

ili shouldn't be limited to climate change programing which is what 01402 sound

4

{such asii

Question of the cost of bylaw changes and equitable distribution of costs, considering low income residents
How will this be done? - suggest an interdepartmental working group; suggest adding “as appropriate”

Implies that EPF is paramount over other poficies
Add municipal practices

species,

pacily (i.e., resilience) in our landscapes TO BUFFER THEM against escalating

EDITORIAL NOTES

= What does “ecosystem services” mean?
= Break out into muliiple objectives

Revisions:
= Created a new principle & Objective 4-3 from the concept of faimess (i.e. equity)

= What does “foster resistance” mean?

Revisions:
= (2 was revised into Objective 1-1

= Perhaps use “residents, businesses & property owners” — more specific &
comprehensive than citizens

= Include NGOs, leaming institutions, other organizations
= |ast note refates to Principle 10

Revisions:
= (02 was revised into Goals 4,5& 6

»  Same issue with having lists that are not complete or somehow make it clear that
just bylaws and policies are on the list

=  Some comments could become additional objectives (e.g. bullets 1, 3)
= Bullet 4 - new principle on equity?
= New objective to fill gaps in existing bylaws/policies?

Revisions:
= (3 was revised into Goal 4

habilitati

2 “Manage” enc protection, r

|

enhancement, as well as pl

d devel tand d use.

¥ &




General

DRAFT OBJECTIVES

SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK
= Not SMART (specific, measurable, ble, realistic, time-bound) - if they aren't measurable then progress toward them can't be
determined, they're too vague, they might be measurable but not sure they are realistic or attainable
= Municipal interest in densification counters efforts to protect privately owned orchards/ Garry oak meadk

s Public decision making and management practices - significant demand to change, Regional Growth Strategy supports this work (objective
2.1 identifies principles to guide land protection, conservation & management)

= Lackof or inadequate amount of data is a concern, particularly if we don't have good baseline or historical data. How can we develop
measured progress and know if these objectives have been met?

Suggestions:

»  Suggest merging the goals and objectives & shift the idea of SMART objectives to the strategy (thematic) level

= |dentify targets or baselines, even if they are general, look a examples from other cities - e.g. % of conservation

= Move the 2030 date to the objectives level — i.e. measurable & time-bound

=  AddR ion and Biodiversity obj

»  Look at Langford poticies (4.10.1, 4.10.2, 4.10.3, 4.10.4) re: restoration practices dealing with invasive & native species in parks, public &
private lands

»  Look at Saanich Climate Plan & integrated stormwater management for comph tary / coordinated obj

= *Gather the baseline for habitat and species conservation action planning in Saanich, including public and private land (considering Sensitive
Ecosystem inventory areas, Significantly Treed Areas, parks and protected areas, wildiife comidors and stepping stones for connectivity,
urban forest canopy, known or status unk priority tion species)”.

= “Create and sustain the means to identify key indicators of the health of our ecosystems (temestrial and marine), to monitor and report on
these to guide future municipal action”.

»  Protect what is green and natural on properties stated for development and redevelopment.

»  Reinstate those neighbourhoods that were previously in the EDPA back into a similar plan.

»  Create a plan that addresses the need for housing that respects and does not compromise the environmental impacts on neighbourhoods.
»  Need accountability measures beyond electons

EDITORIAL NOTES

I's possible to merge the goals & objectives into goals. The draft objectives read
better as goals.

Suggestion to focus SMART at the strategic objective level
makes sense.

- This leaves a gap, though, in what Council has directed RSTC to produce (to
establish objectives for the RPF).

- Wonder if objectives drafted for each theme area could be written into the EPF
to guide the future development of related strategies/ plans.(existing ones such
as Climate Plan could be plugged in)

Ask staff for existing measures/documents related to bullets 4—8 under
suggestions




APPENDIX D: SUMMARY OF RESILIENT SAANICH TECHNICAL COMMITTEE FEEDBACK

Appendix D was compiled from the RSTC Notes to Kim (September 21), RSTC small group meetings (October 29 & November 15), RSTC workshop meetings (December 11 & 16), and email correspondence from vanous
Technical Committee members.

Vision Enits, REVISIONS & EDITORIAL NOTES
"s The calls in the public comments to re-visit the Vision should be heeded. Does it now capture what we intend? Should there be a 10-year and a 100-year vision? Is a Vision statement really " The vision was deleted

Ty = Dates were moved o the goals & objectives level, based on Staff suggestions on what
= |twoukl be helpful to get some clarity around (and words for) what the outcomes of the EPF will be. could be achieved by when
»  Re: regional and local policy context - There are a lot of visions and at some point the strength of a vision b less impactful. Maybe we don't need to include a wision. »  RSTC 15 drafting a purpose statement to replace the vision statement
= There are 3 distinct concepts in the RSTC draft vision that are most important — 1) the notion of *coordinated efforts”, 2) the inclusion of "WSANEC" communities, and 3) inclusion of both human

and non-human inhabitants as beneficiaries. [The di i led that these pts are also reflected in the principles)
e The concepts of “climate change resiki habitat tion, hed health and ecological footprint” represent the end desired state, not the means to the end {i.e. nouns not verbs)

= The vision could be replaced with an introduction, policy context, statement of purpose and a brief descnption of what Resilient Saanich means.
= The date 2030 is not far off. # may be more appropriate to consider short, medium and long term wisions and goals.




PRINCIPLES EDiTs, REVISIONS & EDITORIAL NOTES

P1 = Stakeholder and RSTC suggestions and feedback were used to develop the final 1
®  P1is about changing the way all of us percene nature and may be more consistent with First N_ations atfitudes. Perhaps we need to specify both “intnnsic” value and the value of ecological goods and revised panciples.

services — they are bath important ways of percemving the value of nature, but the latter emphasizes the value of green infrastructure «  P1 [Value the Basics), P2 [App = Knowledge), P8 [Work with
= Drop the word “intrinsic” & consider replacing it with “essential". Change to “recognize that nature has value™. Clanify what "value™ means (i.e. the nght of nature to exist outside of human values). Bioregional Partners] & P9 [Galvanize Climate Actions) were kept as separate
= Re: *honour the intrinsic value of nature® principle — that principle 15 not reflected in this o t principles
- = P3 & P6 were merged [Leam from the Past, Plan for the Future]
= Respect and integrafe indi knowledg s P4 & P5were merged [Make A table & Cautious Decisions]
= Strong support for including Indigenous voices. Need to go beyand respect - collaboratively - have Indigenous re-write in a way thatis appropriate. i is important that we keep leaming and listening. ® P7 & P10 were merged [Lead & Collaborate]

People want fo be heard. Need to be clear what respect means to indigenous communities. «  Three new principles were created from RSTC and stakeholder suggestions
s The focus seems o be on traditional land uses — how to manage the land; relationship with the land — sense of place. e Principles with linking concepts were merged to keep the ist as small as
= How is Saanich going to implement this from a practitioner’s point of view? Do not want it to become restrictive or political. possible. RSTC endorsement was not completely unanimous (i.e. p3 & P6).

Reasons in favour of keeping P1, P8 & P9 separate were helpful.

s Askfor First Nations feedback on appropnate wording for principle 2

e Detailed discussions in the workshop (Dec 11 & 16), including suggested edits,
P3&P6 were particularly helpful toward gaining a commen understanding of some of the
= Keep P3 & P6 separate. draft pnnciples.
s Unsure what P& means. If it is referring to traditional Inds land uses then it fits with P1. But s PG referning to post-contact land uses? = The principles were heavily edited in the interest of stand-alone statements that
= Not comfortable with stating a timeline. could be easily understood by members of the public.

*  Vague statement but is important to consider that what we do now does not hinder what we do in the future. Unless we have a good understanding of where we are now, it wil be hard to move forward  * Specialized concepts and terms were added (see Section 3.4) for future use
and learn from our mistakes. when the EPF document is written at the conclusion of Milestone 3 in the

! Resikient Saanich workplan.
= Future generations includes afl life, where habitat and landscapes change over time.
s Itis important to consider a “do no harm" approach or taking positive effects to reduce impacts on future generations; it will also be important to consider foundational knowledge of the ecological state.

" fo \

e Change
s |nterms of climate change, what lies ahead will be unprecedented.
= Pfis vague; revise it to read *historical ecological conditions”.

»  [tmay be appropriate to include small descriptors of the goals.

= Emon the sde of simplicity in the writing.

P4&5

= Combine P4 {evidence-based) & PS (p ionary).

= Science can be siow and may not always be the answer.

s {tis important to have evid based decish king from legitimate sources. There is a difference between science-based and evidence-based. Evidence-based is critical; it is about placemaking
and how you feel about a space. Multi-knowledge streams should inform this principle.

=  Change °d king® to “envi | management”.

»  Language is needed that explains the principles in a more fulsome manner,
= When you have a knowledge gap, you shoukd attempt to fill it; precautionary principle is often misunderstood. Need to use the knowledge we have: doing nothing is not the answer.
= Evd based includ /data, policy and practice.




PRINCIPLES

EpiTs, REVISIONS & EDITORIAL NOTES

P?

P10

There may be other factors in determining strong leadership. Leadership means taking inittative and bold action.
Saanich should take an active approach. It will be imp to do hing well before something new is initiated.
Use “d strong leadership with ge, initiative and commitment”. *Strong leadership” is preferable over “active leadership”.

Itmay be appropriate to combine P7 and P10.

Imp for broadk public percep
There were two different takes from the focus groups on what it meant; Revision ‘A’ could be the descriptor.
Ecological function should be ded to “ecological function and composition”.

at large (recognizing that environment and ecosystems do not end at municipal borders) but lends itself more to govemmental structures and actions.

The climate change principle, is a different beast — we must recognize that climate change will affect the natural environment in a mynad of ways and explicitly state that. It needs to be retained
somehow, even if it needs rewording at some point.

The phrase “all that we do” 15 vague and all encompassing. Rephrase from “all...* to what's relevant.
Adaptation and mitigation was left out in the revision [replaced with ‘actions’]; it's important to keep both adaptation and mitigation.

It |sl imporiant to ensure that cultural and diverse voices are heard; everyone benefits from diversity and inclusion. Diverse interests goes beyond cukture and gender, climate justice, environmental
justice.

Change to "work to ge p hips”. Change “collab "o “p hips”, it will be imp t to nurture p hips that support a full range of private, public and not-for-profit stakeholders
as environmental stewards.

Some like collaborate, some d cooperate; some like both partnership and collaboration.

Collaborating means rolling up your sleeves; partner 1s more like a funder. Partnerships should be sought to build capacity.

E | degradation is impacting lized residents; it will be important to ensure they are adequately consulted.

Change “support’ to "promote”.

P10 1s not clear. Rewrite *...achieve outcomes that realize multiple values and benefits from environmental stewardship.

P11 [new pnnciple, now called *Safeguard Equity, Diversity & Inclusmity]

Add “socio economic status”.

A glossary of terms or footnotes may be needed.

Change to "Design and manage municipal governance tools, services and land uses that are safe, equitable and inclusive”, or, “welcoming of everyone®.
This new prnciple addresses our onginal intention in P10 regarding “diverse interests”.

It is appropnate to look at how the municipality is currently operating and what values tend to be predominant; what would need to be done to change in order to see values representative of the way
the municipality does business.

P12 [new pnnciple, now called “Build Communtty Capacity’]

Citizen-led initiatives are encouraged. The term to use is “citizen science” instead of “research”. There may be a way to do this in a way to build community capacity.
P12 reads more like an objective.




Should each principle have an explanatory sentence or short paragraph? Are pnnciples shaped in a way that they can be used as policy filters? Are there principles that need to be removed, changed
or added? The thematic plans can also address specific pinciples & objectives, and catch many of the subjects that are missing.

Caution against too many; 10 principles is a lot.

some of the RSTC principles could be combined while others should remain as stand-alone principh eep p les 1,8,9 sep ~ they are quite different in intent and don't combine well. |
like your rewording of principles 1 and 8 in draft rewision a; ... agree with combining onginal pnnc:ples 3and 6 4 and 5; and 7 and 10.

Suggest taking a step back and look at the RSTC's mandate and review the VPGOs to make sure the EPF vntl address onginal concems negardmg pohcy mplementabon at the operational level. A
different set of prnciples might provide more practical guidance - e.g. setting standard: & reporting, coordinating across the p

Don't want to lose the high level pnnciples that the committee has worked and agreed on.

The Vision and Pnnciples are essential parts of the EPF, They provide a sense of what we are trying to do and provide some “glue” to hold the framework together — it is not just to make the
bureaucracy more efficient and have a more complete checkist to follow when tweaking poficy or approving budgets, but to also give the natural environment a higher priority in how we (public, council,

staff) think and act. That involves some change in values and pnorities and recognizing that our actions as humans have broader q than fmost of us g
The committee could provide history and context to the principles to help [this] process.
The condensed pnnciples (draft *b") were not broad-enough to use as principles but were very well worded and could be useful as objectives.

Re: D ber 31 final draft - On the Fi k Guiding Principk the footnotes on the next page aught to be moved under the relevant principle. | still think these guiding principles need
work. When | look at what was in the onginal framework from December 2020, | think | still prefer some of these. For example, to me, “Respect Indigenous knowledge and land uses” is stronger than

Ly )

PRINCIPLES Enits, REVISiONS & EDITORIAL NOTES
New suggestions
= Pnvate land stewardship
e Equily across generations or across cultures, classes, efc. (or add to p3)
= Apnnciple that explicitly recognizes bet abiotic envi y and biodiversity, and human health and weliness
Other Feedback




GOALS & OBJECTIVES

Epirs, REVISIONS & EDITORIAL NOTES

" Goal 1
s “ecological function” and “biological diversity” are distinct from one another.

= Ecological function should be expanded to “ecological structure, function and composition”
= Remove the word “enhance”. It is redundant. Don't lose “protect and restore”

Goal 2

= Replace “compli y" with ‘complementary”.

Objective 2

= Make sure any use of the word “landscapes” is inclusive of water.....e. land and waterscapes or something else.

Objective 3

= Engage and support all those lving and/or working in Saanich. ..

SMART goals & objectives

. We can try this ... but the aspirational nature of the Framework doesn't really lend itself to that formula. For ple, it's difficult to things like coordination, and to put time bounds
on aspirational goals seems unnecessary, even unwise.

= The EPF is an asp ! di Consequently, it is neither possible nor desirable to make the goals and objectives SMART (specific, measurable, achievable, reafistic, timely).

Nesting goals & objectives

e« The it d ds that nesting objectives under goals is standard practice (refer to the VENN diagram). Matching (nesting) the draft objectives to the draft goals doesn't work. Only
objective 4 could be nested specifically under goal 2. All the other objectives fit under both of the draft goals.

Other feedback

« Do we need objectives? (a ref to having objectives in the th plans)

= Saanich has already endorsed the One Planet Saanich concept. I, too, is an hing fr rk that f on keeping our ecological footprint to a size commensurate with our

population. This could be a goal or a prnciple. Reduce our ecological footprint {see wording in One Planet Saanich documents).
= The 3 pillars are the priorities - biodiversity, climate action, stewardship.
= How will the goals change over tme? Why do we have just two goals? (a reference to the onginal RSTC draft)

= The goals and objectives should speak to the E | Policy F rk (EPF). Themes pick up the specific | goals and objectives. The Biodiversity Strategy is a theme;
the Climate Plan is also a theme.

=  The goal of the EPF is to answer the question - what is the problem for which the EPF is a solubion; and it needs to be strategic.

= | now believe there are too many Goals, which, together with the Objectives, look more like a workplan than Goal statements. The two goals we first suggested. .. still make sense to me. Too
many goals will lead to too many unreached goals. Are the objectives under specific goals exclusive to that goal? Are there objectives that serve more than one goal? | can't tell.

The revised goals and objectives were informed mainly from stakeholder feedback, with
Staff input to make them SMART(er).

There was not enough time during the December workshops to discuss the revised goals
and objectives.

Comments that were made during the workshops referred mainly fo the RSTC's onginal
draft versions. Those who spoke, did not support the new direction that the revised goals
and objectives took (i.e. significantly expanded and detailed goals & objectives, with
objectives nested under goals).

Most of these Appendix D comments were submitted pnor to the revisions distributed in
December.




ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY FRAMEWORK

EpiTs, REVISiONS & EDITORIAL NOTES

d The Nature of an “Overarching” Policy Framework

kehold ifics and details seem to indicate that it was not understood by readers that the EPF is an aspirational document. Il's a ‘meta” document aimed at
coming in the individual thematic plans.

but the implications reach across the range of municipal responsibilities (e.g. social well-being, economy,

Many | asking for sp
being an overarching umbrelia with the

i

as an overarching document, the focus is on envi p prog
transportation, land use).

The RSTC views the role of the EPF as providing a fens and ientifying strategic priorities for environmental policies & management programs in Saanich.
The meaning behind the phrase “aspirational document” refers to the EPF being a high level fi k for op | plans and It also ys the idea of “
improvement”.

One item that now appears to have been lost is the relationship and link between the Framework as a conceptual and policy “umbrella” and the items that fall under the umbrella: the thematic
plans.... this link was the conceptual breakthrough for us that made the policy framework make sense. | liked how it was depicted that the plans fit within the Framework Goals, which were
nested within the Framework Purpose. That's not evident now. | don't see our original ideas or the original structure reflected in this (final draft rewisions] document.

| think the crux decision is whether "our” {(RSTC) idea of the EPF being: (1) an rk; (2) the principles being a policy filter tool, and (3) leaving detalled objectives to “thematic
detailed strategies” is worthwhile (i.e., few goals and objectives)

| seem to be stuck on the idea that an umbreNa policy should be simple and straightforward. To me, a dense EPF with 10 goals and even more objectives is a complication that will not make
managing the environmental policies in Saanich clearer and easier or lead to effecth dinated policies, bylaws, etc. | see the EPF as, 1. a statement of the overall goals 2. The

policy filters (principles). These 2 things guide the analysis of current thematic areas and the creation of new thematic areas. This is where detailed goals, objectives and actions are embedded.

But as a working document, | would like to get more feedback from those who will be working with it.. Saanich staff. Do they see all the details at the umbreNa level as helpful?

Content

The draft VPGOs released for public feedback did not include any introduction or background as context. At a minimum, any future versions should include an introduction and background
piece that reflects on the rationale for the EPF includi and the purpose of improving the coordination of policies and management plans. The EPF document would benefit from a
front piece that gives more context: where the EPF came from, what it is intended to do, and how it 15 ntended to be used.

I'm expecting the next version to be longer, clearer, with more explanatory notes, and to explain how the whole Framework will address what we were asked by Council fo do: °... develop a
program. . to serve as a policy framework for other Saanich environmental policies and programs. . etc.”

Integrate with larger context (CRD) and collaborate with other levels of govemment to achieve global chmate stabilty

The document should be written in a clear, concise manner that gets the point across. I will be imp: o ider who the audi s.

A small point but with a big impact: the headings should include “Fi rk". So, F  Purpose, F k Guiding Principles, Framework Goals, etc.
iples, Goals and Objectives of the EPF should firmly encourage leadership and initiative by the public and not just rely on staff to accomplish goals.

p

Vision, Pri

Graphic [liustration of the EPF

The il ion that RSTC developed as part of the draft Goals & Objectives has a lot of careful and deliberate thinking behind it; and Council approved the VENN diagram this past summer.
The concentric rings (moving from the outside to inside) shows the "nested" characteristics of the vision, principles, g&o, & thematic plans.

Kim's illustration shows a hierarchical, top down, relationship which the RSTC explicitly does not want the Framework to look like. The overarching nature of the EPF is more ke a web, than a
finear progression

| think Kim's work 1s helping to narrow/align our roles and work in the developing the EPF. | see this as a step getting closer to the final product and | imagine we'll be adjusting the principles,
goals and objectve from Kim's suggestions and work.

Sitting with staff 15 extremely important for us and should be factored into our work going forward.

RSTC planations & feedback on the EPF as a ‘whole” have been part of
an ongoing diak ghout this ise, Envisk the f k has become
clearer with each new conversation, although there is no singular vision of its scope and
content.

Graphic illustrations/sketched outlines, compansons with related local government
plans, and background on other tal f ks were explored for
the purpose of gaining clarity on how the goals and objectives should be edited or
revised. This was within the scope of work but only for the purpase of editing the goals
and objectives.

Additional work - such as accompanying the VPGOs with an introduction, background
context, purpose statement, and more detailed discussion of how the EPF would be
implemented — was beyond the scope of revising the principles, goals and objectives.

One last effort was made (when writing this report) to caplure some of the feedback and
new insights gained with an dlustration (see Figure 1) to place the EPF within two
contexts: 1) the external community context (i.e. people, physicalbiophysical
environments, indigenous knowledge, and government), and 2) the governance context
{i.e. policy - implementation - evaluation — adaptation).




	RSTC Draft Agenda March 29 2022
	2022-02-22-RSTC Draft Minutes
	VPGO REVIEW AND FINAL REPORT
	AP_VPGO review_Feb 8
	REPORT


